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Disclaimer

Statements in this report that describe the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions of the future may be ‘forward- looking statements’ within 
the meaning of the applicable securities laws and regulations. The Company cautions 
that such statements involve risks and uncertainty and that actual results could 
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could cause 
differences include raw materials’ cost or availability, cyclical demand and pricing 
in the Company’s principal markets, changes in government regulations, economic 
developments within the countries in which the Company conducts business, and other 
factors relating to the Company’s operations, such as litigation, labour negotiations and 
fiscal regimes. Some of the images used in this report are purely for illustrative purposes 
only and hence they are not the photos/ images of our facilities, products or of any such 
nature/kind



At Ducol Organics & Colours Ltd., our journey is defined 

by Innovation, Partnerships, Technology and the Pursuit 

of Excellence. Built on a strong foundation of organic 

and inorganic strategies, capacity expansion, and product 

diversification, we remain a trusted partner in pigment 

dispersions as we explore emerging opportunities beyond 

traditional markets. We are actively enhancing our capacities to 

serve growing demand, introducing similar product categories, 

and broadening our reach through new client acquisitions, 

while increasing wallet share with existing clients by providing 

customised, high-performance dispersion solutions. With 

Innovation at the heart of our product development, we are 

adding new products within the pigment dispersion segment, 

launching new product lines aligned with evolving global 

requirements, and expanding into non-pigment dispersion 

spaces to create future-ready solutions for adjacent industries. 

To support this long-term vision, we are strengthening our top 

management team by bringing in strategic leadership to steer 

the next phase of growth. This integrated strategy positions 

Ducol to create sustainable value while staying true to our core 

pillars—Innovation, Partnerships, Technology, and the Pursuit 

of Excellence.
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Expanding Horizons through 
Strategic Diversification
As we look ahead, Ducol is poised to evolve beyond its core offerings 
and embrace new frontiers of growth. Our focus on non-pigment 
dispersion marks a significant milestone in our diversification journey. 
Our understanding of the non-pigment dispersion process allows us to 
apply our technical expertise to a broader spectrum of industries and 
applications, further strengthening our value proposition.



Strategic Acquisition 
Driving Synergies and 
Market Entry

Commitment to 
Innovation-Led,  
Value-Driven Growth

A key highlight of the year has been the strategic 
acquisition of Bitumag, a move that accelerates our entry 
into complementary segments. This acquisition not only 
enhances our technological capabilities but also opens up 
new markets and revenue streams. The commonality of the 
clientele between our existing and newly acquired business 
augurs well, creating huge synergies for the company. With 
this acquisition Ducol is advantageously place to exploit and 
penetrate the large and significantly growing water proofing 
solution segment. Bitumag’s portfolio and synergies align 
well with our vision of building a multi-dimensional business 
with strong fundamentals.

By stepping into non-traditional dispersion domains and 
executing carefully considered inorganic initiatives, Ducol 
is reinforcing its long-term commitment to innovation-led 
and value-driven growth. We remain focused on scaling 
responsibly, while delivering excellence to clients and 
stakeholders alike
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Message From The Managing Director

we successfully advanced 
our growth journey by 
completing a strategic 
acquisition and expanding 
our product portfolio. These 
milestones have enhanced 
our market presence, 
deepened customer 
engagement, and positioned 
us strongly to capture 
new opportunities across 
geographies.
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Dear Shareholders,

FY25 has been a transformative year for Ducol 
Organics & Colours Ltd. We navigated a dynamic 
environment with resilience and purpose, while laying 
the foundation for a new phase of growth through 
strategic expansion and diversification. In the previous 
years we laid the foundation of growth by defining 
strategies and areas of growth, both within and 
outside pigment dispersion. At the same time, we also 
emphasised on sticking to our core forte of dispersion 
and a strong intent of venturing into the vast area of 
non-pigment dispersion. In the financial year 2025, 
we have been successful in taking a giant step in that 
direction with the acquisition of Bitumag Industries.

FY25 Performance and Operational Progress

Financially, FY25 was subdued, with revenue from 
operations of ₹77.35 crore, EBITDA of ₹7.28 crore, 
and PAT of ₹4.62 crore. Our cash flows remain robust, 
reflecting the strength of our operations and prudent 
financial management.

Operationally, we successfully commissioned shed I 
at our Mahad facility (M1). Furthermore, Project M2 
at Mahad is now underway, following the successful 
launch of M1, that is targeted for completion in FY26. 
The upgrade of Unit II at Taloja is also progressing well.  
These are a part of our medium term plan of increasing 
the production capacity upto 45,000 MTPA.

Acquisition of Bitumag Industries

I'm pleased to announce a significant milestone in our 
expansion: the acquisition of Bitumag Industries Pvt. 
Ltd., a reputable provider of waterproofing solutions.  
With this calculated step, we are expanding our 
offering beyond pigment dispersions and making 
our mark in the non-pigment dispersion segment, 
especially in the large construction chemicals market

Bitumag has a significant advantage in this high-
potential market thanks to its industry-leading 
knowledge of polymer-modified bitumen membranes 
and its strong manufacturing capability of 10 million 
square meters annually.  The products, which include 
self-adhesive and torch-on membranes, complement 
our current offerings and are in line with trends in 
infrastructure growth. This acquisition aims to unlock 
synergies, scale more quickly, and create long-term 
value in addition to breaking into a new vertical.

To lead this new segment, we have on boarded  
Mr. Gunendra Pal Singh, a veteran of the construction 
chemicals industry. His proven leadership at global 
giants will be invaluable in accelerating the integration 
and scaling of Bitumag within the Ducol ecosystem. 
This shows our commitment in building a robust and 
future-ready business by leveraging top industry talent 
and driving innovation, operational excellence and 
growth to execute and achieve our long term strategic 
goals.  

Industry Outlook: Riding the Infrastructure Wave

The construction chemicals and waterproofing 
industry in India is witnessing strong tailwinds, driven 
by increased infrastructure spending, government-
backed housing initiatives, and rising awareness of 
long-term structural durability. With the construction 
chemicals market expected to grow at a CAGR of over 
10%, this presents a significant opportunity for Ducol to 
expand into adjacent, value-added product categories.
Our move into this space is both timely and strategic, 
enabling us to capitalise on increasing demand across 
both urban infrastructure and real estate sectors — 
domestically and internationally.

Looking Ahead

Our vision remains clear — to evolve Ducol into a multi-
segment solutions provider with strong capabilities 
across both pigment and non-pigment dispersions. 
We shall continue to work on the multi-pronged 
growth strategy - increasing capacity, introducing 
new products, strengthening client relationships by 
increasing our wallet share with them and winning new 
clients adding new markets and new geographies and 
newer verticals we will keep aiming for organic growth. 
At the same time, we will continue to be receptive to 
inorganic prospects that complement our strategic 
vision and adding new business lines.

As we step into a new chapter, I want to thank our 
employees, customers, partners and investors and 
other stakeholders for their unwavering trust and 
support. We are committed to long term growth 
through driven by innovation and sustainability 
enabling in long-term stakeholder value creation.

Thank you for your continued trust and support. Warm 
regards,

Aamer Ahmed Farid
Managing Director
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1990

1994

1996

2002

2009
2010

Research & Development
Establish R&D 

laboratories to innovate 
process capabilities 

and advance product 
application techniques

Company 
Incorporation

Incorporation of  
Ducol Organics &  

Colours

Commercial  
Production

Started commercial  
production by setting  

up Unit I at MIDC, Taloja

Product  
Expansion

Tie-up with Rheine  
Chemie for rubber  

master batches

Capacity Expansion
Established Unit II at  

MIDC, Taloja for  
masterbatch  

production (2009)

Product  
Expansion

Form a strategic  
partnership with CPS Colour  

for machine colorants

Milestones

A Journey Through Colours
Ducol’s journey began in 1990 as a humble laboratory focused on developing cutting-edge 
process capabilities and product application techniques that meet international standards. Over 
the decades, Ducol has blossomed into a market leader, renowned for its expertise in pigments, 
dispersions, masterbatches, preparations, and concentrates. 
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2012
2014

2019

2022

2024

2025

Capacity  
Expansion

Commenced 
commercialization of  

Shed 1 at the Mahad Plant

Strategic Aquistion
Acquisition of  

Bitumag Industries and  
building up Non-Pigment 

Dispersion Business

Public  
Listing

SME Listing

Capacity  
Expansion

Setting up facilities  
at Mahad

Technology  
Implementation

Implemented SAP as  
the core enterprise  
operating system

Market Expansion
Formed -a strategic  

alliance with DIC-AP for the 
distribution of Ducol products 

across Asia Pacific and the 
Middle East

Our vibrant colour solutions span various industries, including paints, inks, plastics, textiles, 
detergents, and paper. The past twenty-odd years have been marked by relentless research, 
innovation, and modernisation. With this, Ducol makes its entry into the non-pigment dispersion 
segment through the acquisition of Bitumag, marking its presence in the waterproofing and 
construction chemicals space.
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In FY25, Ducol Organics & Colours Limited strengthened 
its portfolio through the acquisition of Bitumag Industries 
Pvt. Ltd., a well-established player in the waterproofing and 
construction chemical segment. Bitumag specializes in 
polymer-modified bitumen-based waterproofing membranes 
and has an installed capacity of 10 million square meters per 
annum, making it one of the leading manufacturers in India. 
Its products are widely used in real estate developments, 
large-scale infrastructure projects, bridges and tunnels, 
where durability, water resistance and long-term structural 
protection are of critical importance.

The acquisition marks a natural progression for Ducol as 
it expands beyond pigment dispersions into non-pigment 
dispersion applications. Waterproofing membranes and 
construction chemicals represent high-growth opportunities 
in India, driven by rapid infrastructure investments and rising 
demand for sustainable, long-lasting building solutions. The 
Indian waterproofing membrane market, valued at US$ 492 

Bitumag Industries – Strengthening 
Ducol’s Entry into Waterproofing & 
Construction Chemicals

million in 2023, is expected to grow to US$ 1.75 billion by 
2032 at a CAGR of 15.7%.

By combining Bitumag’s deep expertise in waterproofing 
with Ducol’s strong foundation in dispersion technology and 
manufacturing excellence, the company is well-placed to 
achieve meaningful synergies. This integration will enable 
Ducol to broaden its product portfolio, achieve operational 
efficiencies, and capture opportunities in India’s booming 
real estate and infrastructure sectors. With this strategic 
step, Ducol is positioning itself as a comprehensive solutions 
provider in dispersions and performance chemicals, while 
contributing to the sustainable growth of the construction 
ecosystem and creating long-term value for all stakeholders.

Financial Highlights of Bitumag Industries:

Revenue INR 41.19 crore 

Profit after tax INR 3.62 crore
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Customer Names

BR Technologies

Armour 
Surface 
Coating

Chocomax 
General 

Trading LLC
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Vision
Ducol aspires to be a 
technology-driven organization, 
built on the strengths of 
dispersion chemistry and 
advanced material sciences. 
We aim to deliver innovative, 
high-performance solutions that 
support sustainable growth. Our 
vision is to be the global partner 
of choice, creating long-term 
value for stakeholders while 
driving responsible innovation 
and shaping a sustainable 
future.

Mission
Our mission is to build diverse, 
self-sustaining business 
verticals powered by dispersion 
technology and continuous 
innovation. We are committed to 
developing solutions that meet 
evolving industry needs and 
enhance customer convenience. 
By leveraging research, 
technology, and partnerships, 
Ducol strives to deliver reliable, 
value-driven offerings while 
fostering trust and shared 
success. 
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Ducol offers a vibrant and versatile range of products 
designed to meet both industrial and consumer 
applications across diverse sectors. From pigments 
and dispersions to specialty solutions, the company’s 
portfolio reflects its commitment to adaptability and 
precision in addressing varied market needs.

In FY25, this commitment was further strengthened 
through the acquisition of Bitumag Industries 
Pvt. Ltd., adding polymer-modified bitumen-based 
waterproofing membranes and construction 

Expanding Product Offerings

chemicals to Ducol’s product lineup. Alongside 
this, Ducol continues to focus on new product 
development and expanding product offerings, 
ensuring that its solutions remain relevant, innovative, 
and future-ready.

By continuously enhancing its product basket, 
Ducol is not only meeting the evolving demands of 
customers but also opening new avenues of growth 
across both industrial and consumer markets.
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Ducol’s strength lies in its ability to serve some of the most 
respected names across industries. Over the years, the 
company has built a prestigious clientele comprising leading 
brands in paints, inks, textiles, rubber, plastics, paper, soaps, 
and detergents. These long-standing partnerships are a 
testament to Ducol’s unwavering focus on quality, reliability, 
and customer-centric innovation.

Enduring Partnerships with  
Top-Tier Clients

This diversified client base not only enhances Ducol’s market 
resilience but also positions it as a trusted partner for 
businesses seeking consistent performance and advanced 
solutions. Today, Ducol proudly exports globally and 
continues to deepen its relationships with marquee domestic 
and international clients — reinforcing its reputation as a 
partner of choice in the specialty chemicals space.
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Innovation remains central to Ducol Organics & Colours 
Ltd.’s growth journey. From establishing advanced R&D labs 
to building a strong commercial manufacturing base, Ducol 
has consistently developed high-performance solutions that 
keep it ahead of industry trends.

In FY25, the company strengthened this focus with the 
acquisition of Bitumag Industries Pvt. Ltd., a specialist in 
waterproofing membranes and construction chemicals. This 
strategic move expands Ducol’s portfolio beyond pigments, 
creating new growth avenues and enhancing its ability to 
deliver value-added, diversified solutions to customers.

Innovation-Led Diversification
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Experienced team

Commitment to Quality

Backed by over two decades 
of industry expertise, Ducol’s 
technology team brings 
unmatched knowledge and 
innovation to the forefront. Their 
proficiency fuels the company’s 
R&D initiatives, enabling Ducol 
to consistently deliver advanced 
solutions and maintain its 
leadership in the pigments and 
performance chemicals industry

At Ducol, quality is non-
negotiable. The company 
follows stringent quality control 
protocols, conducting regular 
checks in line with global best 
practices and defined test plans. 
This rigorous process ensures 
that every product upholds 
the highest benchmarks of 
reliability, consistency, and 
customer satisfaction.
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Notice is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting 
of the members of Ducol Organics and Colours Limited will 
be held on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 at 12:30 P.M. (IST) 
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

Item no. 1: Adoption of Standalone audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

To consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 together 
with the Reports of the Board and Independent Auditors 
thereon and other Annexures and attachment therewith, 
as circulated to the members be and are hereby received, 
considered, approved and adopted.”

Item no. 2: Appointment of a director in place of Aamer 
Ahmed Farid (holding DIN: 00711705), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 
by rotation

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 
read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of the members of the 
Company be, and is hereby accorded to the re‐appointment of 
Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (holding DIN: 00711705) as a Director, 
to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.”

Special Businesses:

Item No. 3: Re-Appointment of Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (DIN: 
00711705) as the Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association, the approval 
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to re-appoint Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (DIN: 00711705), as 
the Managing Director of the Company, for a period of five 
consecutive years commencing from 1st October, 2025 
upto 30th September, 2030 as recommended by Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board 
of Directors, upon the terms and conditions set out in the 
Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this 
Annual General Meeting (including the remuneration to be paid 
in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial 

year during the tenure of his appointment), with authority to the 
Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions 
of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed to 
between the Board of Directors and Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid.” .

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid [DIN: 
00711968], Whole Time director of the Company and/or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 
may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution, including submission of relevant 
forms/returns to Ministry of Corporate Affairs.”

Item No. 4: Re-Appointment of Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid (DIN: 
00711968) as the Whole Time Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association, the 
approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to re-appoint Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid(DIN: 00711968), 
as the Whole Time Director of the Company, for a period of 
five consecutive years commencing from 1st October, 2025 
upto 30th September, 2030 as recommended by Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board 
of Directors, upon the terms and conditions set out in the 
Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening 
this Annual General Meeting (including the remuneration to 
be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any 
financial year during the tenure of his appointment), with 
authority to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms 
and conditions of the said appointment in such manner as 
may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Hani 
Ahmed Farid.”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid [DIN : 
00711705], Managing Director and/or Company Secretary of 
the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, 
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution, including 
submission of relevant forms/returns to Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai	  Sabina Qureshi
Date: 20/08/2025	  Company Secretary
			    Acs: A65859

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai 400020

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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NOTES

the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Hence, 
the Members can attend and participate in the ensuing  
31st AGM through VC/OAVM only. The proceedings of the 
AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered 
Office of the Company which shall be the deemed Venue 
for the 31st AGM.

4.	� PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A 
MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 
31STAGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON THEIR BEHALF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
SINCE THIS 31ST AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO 
THE MCA CIRCULARS & SEBI CIRCULARS THROUGH 
VC/OAVM, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS 
HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE 
FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE 
MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM 
AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP 
AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS 
NOTICE.

5.	 The Company has engaged the services of Messrs 
Bigshare Services Private Limited (Hereinafter referred 
to as the “Registrar and share transfer agent”), who are 
also the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, 
as the authorized agency for conducting the VC/OAVM  
31st AGM and providing remote e-voting facility for the 31st 
AGM of the Company. The instructions for participation 
by Members are given in the subsequent paragraphs.

6.	 Messrs Deep Shukla & Associates, through its Proprietor 
Shri Deep Shukla (FCS 5652/CP No. 5364), Practicing 
Company Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Scrutinizer”), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
to scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit the report 
to the Chairman or any person authorised by him after 
completion of the scrutiny and the results of voting will 
be announced after the AGM of the Company. Subject to 
receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall 
be deemed to be passed on the date of the 31st AGM. The 
result will also be submitted to the www.nseindia.com 
and also will be disseminated on https://www.ducol.
com/.

7.	 The Notice of the 31st Annual General Meeting along with 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is being 
sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Messrs Bigshares 
Services Private Limited/Depositories pursuant to the 
MCA Circulars 10/2022 dated December 28,2022 read 
with Securities Exchange Board of India Circular SEBI/
HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January5, 2023 
by the Members may note that the Notice of Annual 
General Meeting and Annual Report for the financial year 
2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website  

1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) permitted 
holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. In 
compliance with the MCA Circulars, AGM of the Company 
is being held through VC/OAVM. The Registered Office 
of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for 
the AGM. [General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 
8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation 
to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 
resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 
2013”, General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 
and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest 
being 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 in relation to 
“Clarification on holding of AGM through VC/ OAVM, 
collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”]. Hence, in 
compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company 
is being held through VC/ OAVM. Electronic copy of 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2025 is being 
sent to all the members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) 
for communication purposes.. In case any member is 
desirous of obtaining hard copy of the Annual Report for 
the financial year 2025 and Notice of the 31st AGM of the 
Company, may send request to the Company’s e-mail 
address at cs@ducol.com mentioning Folio No./DP ID 
and Client ID

2.	 Effective April 1,2024, SEBI has mandated that the 
shareholders, who hold shares in physical mode and 
whose folios are not updated with any of the KYC 
details viz. (i) PAN (ii) Choice of Nomination (iii) Contact 
Details (iv) Mobile Number(v) Bank Account Details and 
(vi) Signature, shall be eligible to get dividend only in 
electronic mode. Accordingly, payment of dividend (as 
and when declared),subject to approval at the AGM, shall 
be paid to physical holders only after the above details 
are updated in their folios. Shareholders are requested 
to complete their KYC by writing to the Company’s 
RTA, M/s Bigshare Services Pvt.Ltd. The forms for 
updating the same are available at Company’s website  
https://www.ducol.com and RTA https://www.
bigshareonline.com/.

3.	 In compliance with Section108 of the Companies Act, 
2013 ( the “Act”) (including any statutory modifications 
or reenactment thereof for the time being in force) 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”), as amended 
from time to time, read with MCA Circulars, SEBI 
Circular and pursuant to Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 
obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 
2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), permitted the holding 
of Annual General Meeting through Video Conference 
(VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) without the 
physical presence of Members at a common venue, 
the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Members of 

http://www.nseindia.com
https://www.ducol.com/
https://www.ducol.com/
mailto:cs@ducol.com
https://www.ducol.com
https://www.bigshareonline.com/
https://www.bigshareonline.com/
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https://www.ducol.com/ and on the website of National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited at https://www.nseindia.
com/ Members can attend and participate in the 31st 
Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.

8.	 The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 
36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed.

9.	 The Members attending the 31st AGM through VC/OAVM 
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
pursuant to Section 103 of the Act.

10.	 Members seeking any information with regard to the 
accounts or any matter to be placed at the 31st AGM, are 
requested to write to the Company at least 03 days before 
the 31st AGM on so as to enable the Management to 
keep the information ready at the Meeting, by mentioning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number through email at cs@ducol.com. The 
same will be replied by the Company suitably.

11.	 Those Members who intend to speak at the 31st AGM can 
register themselves as Speaker by marking their email 
to cs@ducol.com at least 03 days before the 31st AGM. 
Those shareholders who have registered themselves 
as a speaker will only be allowed to express their ask 
questions during the meeting.

12.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 
to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

13.	  Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

14.	 Institutional/corporate shareholders (i.e., other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.), are required to send a 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their respective 
Board or governing body Resolution/Authorisation 
etc., authorising their representative to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM on their behalf and to vote through 
remote e-Voting. The said Resolution/Authorisation shall 
be sent by e-mail on Scrutinizer’s e-mail address at cs@
ducol.comwith a copy marked to csoffice@deepshukla.
com Corporate Members/Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUFs, NRIs etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authority 
Letter etc. by clicking on the “Upload Board Resolution/
Authority Letter” displayed under the “e-Voting” tab in 
their login.

15.	 All documents referred to in the Notice are open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during 
office hours on all days except Sunday & public holidays 
between 09.30 a.m. to 02.00 p.m. up to the date of  
31st Annual General Meeting.

16.	 The Register of Members and share transfer books of the 
Company will remain closed from September 15, 2025 to 
September 22, 2025 (both days inclusive).

17.	 The Company has fixed cutoff date i.e.; September 
14, 2025 for determining the eligibility for e-voting by 
electronic means at 31st AGM.

18.	 Members are requested to promptly notify any changes 
in their addresses to the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent i.e., Messrs. Bigshare Services Private Limited 
at their Address Office Pinnacle Business Park, Office 
No S6-2, 6th, Mahakali Caves Rd, next to Ahura Centre, 
Andheri East, Mumbai, 400093.

19.	 The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion 
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cutoff date i.e., September 14, 2025.

20.	 In order to exercise strict control over the transfer 
documents, members are requested to send the transfer 
documents/ correspondence, if any, directly to: Bigshare 
Services Private Limited Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle 
Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves 
Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400093, India Phone 
: 022-62638200 | Fax : 022-62638299 Email : info@
bigshareonline.com.

21.	  Members who have not yet registered their e-mail 
addresses are requested to register the same with their 
DP in case the shares are held by them in demat mode.

22.	 The remote e-Voting period will commence on September 
19, 2025, AT 9.00 A.M (IST) and end on September 21, 
2025, AT 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, Members of 
the Company, holding shares in dematerialized form, as 
of the cut-off date of September 14, 2025 may cast their 
vote by remote e-Voting.

23.	 The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by Messrs 
Bigshare Services Private Limited for voting thereafter. 
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the 
Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

24.	  The e-Voting module on the day of the 31st AGM shall 
be activated during the proceeding of the 31st AGM and 
shall be disabled by Messrs Bigshare Services Private 
Limited for voting 15 minutes after the conclusion of the 
31st AGM.

25.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of 
the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements 
in which the directors are interested, maintained under 

https://www.ducol.com/
https://www.nseindia.com/
https://www.nseindia.com/
mailto:cs@ducol.com
mailto:cs@ducol.com
mailto:cs@ducol.comwith
mailto:cs@ducol.comwith
mailto:csoffice@deepshukla.com
mailto:csoffice@deepshukla.com
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
mailto:info@bigshareonline.com
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Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically 
for inspection by the members during the AGM. All 
documents referred to in the Notice will also be available 
for electronic inspection will be available electronically 
for inspection by the Members during the 31st AGM, 
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send 
an email to cs@ducol.com.

PROCEDURE AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING:

1)	 In compliance with Regulation 44, SEBI Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements, 2015 as amended 
from time to time, provisions of Section 108 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company 
is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their 
right to vote at the 31st Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 
electronic means (“e-Voting”) and the items of business 
as detailed in this Notice may be transacted through 
e-voting services provided by Bigshare Services Private 
Limited (RTA).

2)	 The Remote E-voting facility will commence from 
September 19, 2025, AT 9.00 A.M (IST) and end on 
September 21, 2025, AT 05:00 P.M. (IST). Remote 
E-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date 
and time and the Remote E-voting module shall be 
disabled by Bigshare Services Private Limited upon 
expiry of aforesaid period.

3)	 Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of 
shares registered in the name of the Member / beneficial 
owner as on the cut-off date i.e., September 14, 2025.

4)	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, 
SEBI has decided to enable e-voting to all the demat 
account holders (including public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders) by way of a single login 
credentials, through their Demat accounts or websites of 
Depositories/Depository Participants. Demat account 
holder shall be able to cast their vote without having 
register again with the e-voting service providers.

5)	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number 
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access 
e-Voting facility.

Bigsharei-Vote E-Voting System

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE 
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

i.	 The voting period begins on September 19, 2025, AT 
9.00 A.M (IST) and end on September 21, 2025, AT 
05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) 
of September 14, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare for 
voting thereafter.

ii.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting 
date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

iii.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, listed entities are required to provide remote 
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed 
that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers 
(ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders.

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, 
pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided 
to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by 
way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able 
to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 
of participating in e-voting process.

iv.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number 
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access 
e-Voting facility.

mailto:cs@ducol.com
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	 1.	� Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL

1.	� Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option  will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon 
and select New System Myeasi.

2.	� After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers i.e.BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly.

3.	� If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4.	� Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option where the e-voting is in progress, and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode with 
NSDL

1)	� If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed 
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)	� If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)	� Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected 
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

		  Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

		�  Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at  
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30

	 2.	� Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other 
than individual shareholders holding shares in 
Demat mode & physical mode is given below:

		  •	 You are requested tolaunch the URL on internet 
browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

		  •	 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR 
LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.

		  •	 Please enter your ‘USER ID’ (User id description 
is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is 
shared separately on you register email id.

			   	 Shareholders holding shares in CDSL 
demat account should enter 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID as user id.

			   	 Shareholders holding shares in NSDL 
demat account should enter 8 Character 
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID as 
user id.

			   	 Shareholders holding shares in physical 
form should enter Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company as 
user id.

		  Note: If you have not received any user id or 
password, please email from your registered email 
id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and 
contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section).

		  •	 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) 
option and login.

		  NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat 
form and have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on 
an earlier event of any company then they can use 
their existing user id and password to login.

		  •	 If you have forgotten the password: Click on 
‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then 
Click on ‘Forgot your password?

		  •	 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click 
on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and 
click on ‘Reset’.

		  (In case a shareholder is having valid email address, 
Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address).

	� Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting 
portal:

	 •	 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system 
page will appear.

	 •	 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under 
‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal.

	 •	 Select event for which you are desire to vote under 
the dropdown option.

	 •	 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on 
the right-hand side top corner of the page.

	 •	 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option 
“INFAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” and 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
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click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to 
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote.

		  •	 Once you confirm the vote you will receive 
confirmation message on display screen 
and also you will receive an email on your 
registered email id. During the voting period, 
members can login any number of times till 
they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote 
on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently.

		  •	 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or 
“VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” 
option on investor portal.

	 3.	� Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting 
Website:

		  •	 You are requested to launch the URL on 
internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.
com

		  •	 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN 
LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigsharei-Vote 
e-Voting Platform.

		  •	 Enter all required details and submit.

		  •	 After Successful registration, message will be 
displayed with “User id and password will be 
sent via email on your registered email id”.

		  NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting 
system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or 
voted on an earlier event of any company then they 
can use their existing user id and password to login.

		  •	 If you have forgotten the password: Click on 
‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and 
further Click on ‘Forgot your password?

		  •	 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click 
on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and 
click on ‘RESET.

		  (In case a custodian is having valid email address, 
Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address).

		�  Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting 
portal:

		  •	 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting 
system page will appear.

		  Investor Mapping:

		  •	 First you need to map the investor with your 
user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on 
custodian portal.

			   o	 Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown 
option and select document type power 
of attorney (POA).

			   o	 Click on upload document “CHOOSE 
FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) 
or board resolution for respective investor 
and click on “UPLOAD”.

		  Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board 
resolution has to be named as the “InvestorID.pdf” 
(Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.)

		  o	 Your investor is now mapped and you can 
check the file status on display.

		  Investor vote File Upload:

		  •	 To cast your vote, select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” 
option from left hand side menu on custodian 
portal.

		  •	 Select the Event under dropdown option.

			   •	 Download sample voting file and enter 
relevant details as required and upload 
the same file under upload document 
option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. 
Confirmation message will be displayed 
on the screen and also you can check 
the file status on display (Once vote on a 
resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently).

			   •	 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on custodian 
portal.

			   Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting:

Login type Helpdesk details

Shareholder‘s other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in 
Demat mode & Physical mode.

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding E-voting, you 
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting 
module available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download 
section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 
1800 22 54 22.

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com
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https://ivote.bigshareonline.com
mailto:ivote@bigshareonline.com


22   |  DUCOL Organics & Colours Ltd.

	 4.	� Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ 
OAVM:

		  For shareholder other than individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is 
given below:

		  •	 The Members may attend the AGM through 
VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.
comunder Investor login by using the e-voting 
credentials (i.e., User ID and Password).

		  •	 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting 
system page will appear.

		  •	 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” 
under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal.

		  •	 Select event for which you are desire to attend 
the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option.

		  •	 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click 
on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO 
CONFERENCE LINK” option.

		  •	 Members attending the AGM/EGM through 
VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

	� The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of 
the AGM/EGM areas under: -

	 •	 The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ 
OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the meeting. The 
procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

	 •	 Only those members/shareholders, who will be 
present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system in the AGM/EGM.

	 •	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting 
will be eligible to attend the EGM. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

	 Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting:

	 In case shareholders/ investor have any queries 
regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.
bigshareonline.com, under download section or you 
can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at:  
1800 22 54 22.

https://ivote.bigshareonline.comunder
https://ivote.bigshareonline.comunder
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As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”), and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts 
relating to the business mentioned under Items No. 3 and Item 
No. 4 of the accompanying Notice dated 20th August, 2025

Item No 3: Re-Appointment of Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid as 
the Managing Director.

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company 
held on August 20, 2025 on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Aamer Ahmed 
Farid [DIN: 00711705], is re-appointed as the Managing 
Director of the Company for a period of five years, w.e.f.  
1st October, 2025 (From 01.10.2025 to 30.09.2030) on the 
terms of remuneration mentioned herein below, with powers 
to the Board to make such variation or increase therein as 
may be thought fit from time to time, but within the ceiling/s 
laid down in the Act or any statutory amendment or relaxation 
thereof:

i.	 Remuneration: Up to maximum of ` 1,20,00,000/- per 
annum and performance bonus of 5% of Profit After Tax 
not exceeding Twenty-Five Lakhs Per annum.

ii. 	 The Managing Director shall be entitled to use the 
company’s car, all the expenses for maintenance and 
running of the same including the salary of Driver to be 
borne by the Company.

iii. 	 Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred 
by him in accordance with rules of the Company.

iv. 	 Reimbursement of Medical Expenses & LTC as per the 
rules of the Company.

v. 	 Other perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as 
per the service rules of the Company as applicable from 
time to time.

This resolution is being proposed as a special resolution in view 
of the relevant provisions of Schedule V to the Act requiring a 
special resolution for payment of minimum remuneration in 
the event of loss or inadequacy of profits.

Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid is interested in the resolution set out 
at Item No. 1 of the Notice with regard to his re-appointment. 
Relatives of Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution to the extent of their shareholding, 
if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the 
other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the special resolution set out in Item 
No. 3 for approval by shareholders.

Item No 4: Re-Appointment of Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid as the 
Whole Time Director

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company 
held on August 20, 2025 on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Hani Ahmed 
Farid [DIN:00711968], is re-appointed as the Whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period of five years, w.e.f.  
1st October, 2025 (From 01.10.2025 to 30.09.2030) on the 
terms of remuneration mentioned herein below, with powers 
to the Board to make such variation or increase therein as 
may be thought fit from time to time, but within the ceiling/s 
laid down in the Act or any statutory amendment or relaxation 
thereof:

i. 	 Remuneration: Up to maximum of ` 1,00,00,000/- per 
annum and performance bonus not exceeding Twenty 
Lakhs per annum.

ii. 	 The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to use the 
company’s car, all the expenses for maintenance and 
running of the same including the salary of Driver to be 
borne by the Company.

iii. 	 Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred 
by him in accordance with rules of the Company.

iv. 	 Reimbursement of Medical Expenses & LTC as per the 
rules of the Company.

v. 	 Other perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as 
per the service rules of the Company as applicable from 
time to time.

This resolution is being proposed as a special resolution in view 
of the relevant provisions of Schedule V to the Act requiring a 
special resolution for payment of minimum remuneration in 
the event of loss or inadequacy of profits.

Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid is interested in the resolution set out 
at Item No. 2 of the Notice with regard to his appointment. 
Relatives of Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution to the extent of their shareholding, 
if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the 
other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the special resolution set out in Item 
No. 4 for approval by shareholders

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013
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Name of Director Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid
DIN 00711705
Date of Birth August 06, 1960
Actual date of Appointment June 16, 1994
Designation Managing Director
Qualifications B.Sc.
Expertise in Specific Functional Area He has been associated with our Company since Inception and has been designated 

as Managing Director w.e.f. October 1, 2022. He has been the main guiding force. 
He has almost three decades of industry experience and has been instrumental 
in our Company’s performance. He is actively involved in day-to-day business 
administration and marketing of the Company. He also helps us on addressing and 
mitigating various risks inherent in our business, including significant competition.

Directorships held in other listed 
companies (As on March 31, 2025)

Nil

Listed entities from which the person 
has resigned in the past three years

Nil

Names of listed entities in which the 
person also holds the Directorship

Nil

Chairmanships/ Memberships of the 
Committees of the Board of Directors of 
other listed companies (As on March 31, 
2025)

Nil

Shareholding of Directors (As on March 
31, 2025)

28,00,800

Relationship between Directors inter-se Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid is a brother of Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid (Whole Time Director)

Annexure to Notice
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
[In pursuance of Clause 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015]
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Name of Director Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid
DIN 00711968
Date of Birth September 20, 1955
Actual date of Appointment June 16, 1994
Designation Whole Time Director
Qualifications B.Com.
Expertise in Specific Functional Area He has been associated with our Company since Inception and has been designated 

as Whole-Time Director w.e.f. October 1, 2022. He is actively involved in day-to-day 
business administration and marketing of the Company.

Directorships held in other listed 
companies (As on March 31, 2025)

Nil

Listed entities from which the person 
has resigned in the past three years

Nil

Names of listed entities in which the 
person also holds the Directorship

Nil

Chairmanships/ Memberships of the 
Committees of the Board of Directors of 
other listed companies (As on March 31, 
2025)

Nil

Shareholding of Directors register 
(As on March 31, 2025)

28,01,290

Relationship between Directors inter-se Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid is a brother of Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (Managing Director)

Annexure to Notice
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
[In pursuance of Clause 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015]



26   |  DUCOL Organics & Colours Ltd.

To,
The Members,
Ducol Organics AndColours Limited,

Your directors are pleased to present the 31st Annual Report of the business and operations of your Company Ducol Organics 
and Colours Limited (hereinafter referred to as the said “Company” or “DUCOL”) accompanied with Audited Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025.

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS

	 The Company adopted Ind-AS from 1st April, 2024 and accordingly the transition was carried out, from the Accounting 
Principles generally accepted in India as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), in accordance with Ind-AS 101 – First time adoption of the Indian Accounting 
Standards.Accordingly, the impact on transition has been recorded in opening reserves as at 1st April, 2023 and all figures 
presented has been restated. The summarized financial performance for the financial year under review compared to the 
previous financial year is given here-in-below:

[Amounts in Lakhs]

Particulars
Current Financial 

Year ended on
March 31, 2025

Previous Financial 
Year ended on

March 31, 2024

Revenue from Operations 7735.34 7540.50
Other Income 284.48 360.74
Gain on Fair Valuation of Financial Investments (FVTPL) 63.92 37.85
Total Revenue 8083.74 7939.10
Less: Total Expenditure (Excluding Depreciation, Finance Costs, and Taxes) 7006.95 6845.44
Profit before Depreciation, Finance cost & Tax 619.81 645.19
Less: Depreciation and amortization 262.23 261.87
Less: Finance Cost 194.75 186.59
Profit before Tax 619.81 645.19
Less: Provision for Tax (Including for prior year and deferred tax) 157.38 164.73
Profit after Tax 462.43 480.46
Earnings per equity share – Basic and diluted ` 2.84 ` 3.30

Board’s Report

2.	 REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

	 The Company’s total revenue from operations increased 
by 2.58 % at ` 7735.34 Lakhs (previous year ` 7540.50 
Lakhs) and Net Profit after Tax decreased by 3.75 % at  
` 462.43 Lakhs (previous year ` 480.46 Lakhs)

3.	 STATE OF AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

	 Your company has proactively initiated measures to 
navigate the challenges and drive growth. Key focus 
areas include optimizing supply chain efficiencies, 
expanding capacities, fostering innovation through 
the development of new products, and strengthening 
marketing and operational capabilities. By addressing 
these areas strategically, your company is poised to 
overcome obstacles and thrive in the evolving business 
landscape of 2025-26.

4.	 DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

	 During the year, the Company has focused on investing 
in growth opportunities through capacity enhancement, 
upgradation of production facilities, and a strategic 
acquisition. These initiatives are aimed at strengthening 
the Company’s long-term competitiveness and value 
creation. In view of the ongoing investment commitments 
and the need to conserve internal resources to support 
these initiatives, the Board of Directors has decided not 
to recommend any dividend for the financial year.

5.	� CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS OF 
THE COMPANY

	 During the financial year under review, there has been no 
change in the nature of the business of the Company.
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6.	 SHARE CAPITAL

6.1 	 Changes in Authorised Capital

	 The Company has increased its authorized capital from ` 15 Crores (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crores only) divided into 
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to ` 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores Only) divided into 
2,00,00,000 Equity shares of ` 10/- and same was approved by the members of the company at the Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on December 31, 2024.

	 A brief of the same in tabular format is prescribed below:

Particulars
As on 31st March, 2025 As on 31st March, 2024

Number of shares Amount (in Lakhs) Number of shares Amount(in Lakhs)

Authorized Share Capital: Equity shares 
of ` 10 each

2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 1,50,00,000 15,00,00,000

6.2 	 Changes in Paid-up Capital

	 The movement of the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company during the financial year is as follows;

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital Number of shares Equity Share Capital

At the beginning of the year i.e., as on April 01, 2024 1,45,40,000 14,54,00,000
Preferential Allotment during the Financial Year# 17,53,958 1,75,39,580
At the end of the year i.e., as on March 31, 2025 1,62,93,958 16,29,39,580

	 All the equity shares so allotted are duly listed on the National Stock Exchange SME Platform (“NSE Emerge”).

	� # On 22nd January, 2025, the Company has allotted 17,53,958 (Seventeen Lakh Fifty-Three Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty-Eight) Equity 
Shares of face value of ̀  10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at premium of ̀  116/- each to Strategic Investors being Non-Promoters on Preferential 
basisand same was approved by the members of the company at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on December 31, 2024.

	 Consequently, the paid-up share capital of the company 
as on date comprises of ` 16,29,39,580/- (Indian Rupees 
Sixteen Crores Twenty-nine Lacs Thirty-Nine Thousand 
Five Hundred and Eighty only) divided into 1,62,93,958 
(One Crore Sixty-Two Lacs Ninety-Three Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) Equity Shares of ` 10/- 
(Indian Rupees Ten Only) each.

	 As on March 31, 2025, the authorized capital of the 
company was ` 20,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty 
Crores only) divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two crore only) 
Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each.

	 Further, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
of the company was ` 16,29,39,580/- (Indian Rupees 
Sixteen Crores Twenty-nine Lacs Thirty-Nine Thousand 
Five Hundred and Eighty only) divided into 1,62,93,958 
(One Crore Sixty-Two Lacs Ninety-Three Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) Equity Shares of ` 10/- 
(Indian Rupees Ten Only) each.

7.	� INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND (“IEPF”) RELATED INFORMATION

	 Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read 
with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’), provides that, all 
unpaid or unclaimed dividends shall be transferred by 
the Company to the IEPF Authority established by the 
Government of India after the completion of seven years. 

Further, according to the said IEPF Rules, the shares 
on which dividend remains unpaid or unclaimed by the 
shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall 
also be transferred to the Demat account of the IEPF 
Authority.

	 The details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends lying with 
the Company as on March 31, 2025 are uploaded on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed through 
the link https://www.ducol.com/

	 Adhering to the various requirements set out in the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as 
amended, the Company has, during financial years 2024-
25 transferred to the Unclaimed Dividend Account all the 
shares in respect of which dividend has been remained 
unpaid or unclaimed. Details of shares so far transferred 
to the Unclaimed Dividend Account are available on the 
website of the Company and the same can be accessed 
through the link: https://www.ducol.com/.

	 Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed 
dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed 
back from the IEPF Authority.

	 Last date to claim Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividends before 
transfer to IEPF for the Financial Year 2023-24, are as 
under;

https://www.ducol.com/
https://www.ducol.com/
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	 Statement of Unclaimed Dividend for the F.Y 2023-24

Name of Shareholders Address

F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23
Tentative 
Due Date for 
Transfer in IEPF

Number 
of Equity 

Shares 
held

Amount
(`)

Number 
of Equity 

Shares 
held

Amount
(`)

Mr. David Edward Wilde C O Aashish Poredi 
National P Post Post 
Box 5822 Sharjah 
UAE 999999

1600 633 1600 950 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr, Mathews Mathew 
Kakkudimannil

202 Bethel Cross 
Road No 3, IC 
Colony, Borivali West, 
Mumbai – 400 103

-- -- 1600 1200 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. Mudit Trivedi A 1 First Floor, 
Parsvnath Par Mohan 
Nagar, Ghaziabad 
201007

-- -- 6400 4800 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. Naveen Chokkakula Rly Qr No 2, F2 Unit 
8, Old Settlement 
Dt Midnapur W 
Kharagpur 721301

-- -- 1600 1200 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. M P Manoj Mahadev Emirated Bank P O 
Box 2923 DUB AI UAE 
999999

7200 2851 -- -- 25th 
September, 
2030

Ms. Manisha R Phalke Plot No 60 61, Flat 3A 
Floor 2, Wing A, Shiv 
Shrusti S G Barve 
Kurla E Mumbai 
400024

1600 800 -- -- 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. Haresh Parchani 36 Tollygunge 
Circular Road Near 
Mahabirtala Petrol 
Pump, Kolkata 
700053

1600 800 1600 1200 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. Ramdev Sitaram 
Sikhwal

340 Upper G F Plot 
255/A Poddar Arcade 
KhandbazarVarachha 
Surat 395006

1600 800 -- -- 25th 
September, 
2030

Mr. Navjeevan Gupta SCO 343 344 sector 
35 B Chandigarh 
160022

800 400 -- -- 25th 
September, 
2030

GRAND TOTAL 14400 6284 12800 9350

	 The last date for claiming unclaimed dividend for the Financial Year 2023-24 is 25th September, 2030 and for financial year 
2022-23 is 25th September, 2029.

8.	� MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

	 During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company approved to make a strategic investment of approximately 
` 39,70,00,000 in Bitumag Industries Private Limited (“Strategic Investment”) and to invest ` 39,70,00,000 and subscribe to 
100% equity shares i.e., 100% of the issued and paid-up equity capital of Bitumag on a fully diluted basis, by end of Q4 of  
FY 2024-25.
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	 In furtherance of the same, the Company entered into 
a Share Purchase Agreement with Bitumag Industries 
Private Limited on 27th March, 2025 to record the terms 
of the Strategic Investment, including the terms on which 
the Company shall acquire 100% equity shares i.e, 100% 
of the issued and paid-up equity capital of Bitumag 
Industries Private Limited and the rights and obligations 
of the Company and 100% of the equity shares of the 
Company were transferred on 17 April 2025.

	 However, there were no other material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company between the end of the financial year to which 
the financial statements relate and up to the date of this 
report.

9.	� COMPLIANCE UNDER THE MATERNITY BENEFIT 
ACT, 1961

	 During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with the applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit 
Act, 1961. All eligible women employees have been 
extended the benefits as prescribed under the Act. The 
Company remains committed to supporting working 
mothers and promoting a gender-inclusive workplace.

10.	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

	 The Management Discussion and Analysis as required in 
terms of the Listing Regulations is annexed to the report 
as “Annexure I” and is incorporated herein by reference 
and forms an integral part of this report.

11.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 The NRC is entrusted with the responsibility for 
developing competency requirements for the Board, 
based on the Industry, Strategy and Vision of the 
Company. The Board composition analysis reflects an 
in-depth understanding of the Company, including its 
strategies, environment, operations, financial condition 
and compliance requirements.

	 The NRC advises the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors and also conducts periodic gap 

analyses to refresh the Board and reviewing potential 
candidates’ profiles to ensure they have the required 
competencies. The NRC also undertakes reference and 
due diligence checks and meets potential candidates 
before making recommendations to the Board. The 
appointee is briefed on the specific requirements for the 
position, including expected expert knowledge. Once a 
suitable candidate is identified, the NRC recommends 
their appointment to the Board for its approval. Upon 
receiving the NRC’s recommendation, the Board 
considers the appointment and if approved, recommends 
the same to the Shareholders for their approval.

	 •	� Appointments or Re-appointment and Cessation 
of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

	 1. 	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, 
Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (holding DIN: 00711765) 
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for 
re-appointment. The Board recommends the said 
reappointment for shareholders’ approval.

	 2. 	 Mrs. Manisha Agrawal has resigned from the post 
of CFO w.e.f. July 31, 2024. The Board appreciated 
the work done by her during her tenure.

	 3. 	 Mr. Rehmat Shaikh was appointed as the CFO w.e.f. 
October 15, 2024 and the same was approved by 
the Board.

	 4. 	 Pursuant to the recommendation of the NRC, 
the Board at its Meeting held on August 20, 2025, 
subject to approval of the Shareholders of the 
Company, considered and approved:

		  -	 To re-appoint Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (DIN: 
00711765) as a Managing Director and Mr. 
Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid (DIN: 00711968) as a 
whole-time Director for a further period of five 
years with effect from 1st October, 2025 upto 
30th September, 2030, resolution in this behalf 
is set out at Item Nos. 03 and 04 of the Notice 
of Annual General Meeting, for Members’ 
approval.

			   As on 31st March, 2025, the following were Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Act.

Sr. 
No. Name of KMP Designation

1. Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Managing Director
2. Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid Whole Time Director
3. Ms. Sabina Qureshi Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
4. Mr. Rehmat Shaikh (w.e.f. 15th October, 2024) Chief Financial Officer
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12.	� SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: BOARD EVALUATION & DISCUSSIONS WITH 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 •	 Pursuant to paragraph VII of Schedule IV, in terms of Section 149 (8) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 (3) & 
(4) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements, 2015, the Board’s policy is 
to regularly have separate meetings with Independent Directors, to update them on all business-related issues, new 
initiatives and changes in the industry specific market scenario. At such meetings, the Executive Directors and other 
Members of the Management make presentations on relevant issues.

Sr. 
no

Name of Directors Ms. Shivani Tiwari Mr. Ratnakar V. Rai Mr. Abhishek Agrawal

Designation as on March 31,2025 Independent Director Independent Director Independent Director

1 6, December 2024 Y Y Y

	 •	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as 
the evaluation of the working of its committees. The Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.

13.	 DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the 
Independent Directors of the Company have given their 
declarations to the Company that they meet the criteria 
of independence as provided under Section 149(6) 
of the Act read along with Rules framed thereunder 
and Regulations of the Listing Regulations and are not 
disqualified from continuing as an Independent Director 
of the Company. The Independent Directors have also 
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or 
situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, 
that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their 
duties with an objective independent judgement and 
without any external influence.

	 Further, in compliance with Rule 6(1) and 6(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors of the Company 
have registered themselves with the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs (IICA).

	 Based on the disclosures received, the Board is of the 
opinion that, all the Independent Directors fulfil the 
conditions specified in the Act and Listing Regulations 
and are independent of the management.

	 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

	 In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rules issued there under and SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015, the Board of Directors on recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Board/ Director(s) for 
the Financial Year 2024-25.

	 Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations, the Board, in consultation with 
its Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has 
formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the 
criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board 

of the Company, its committees and individual Directors, 
including Independent Directors. The annual performance 
evaluation of the Board as a whole, its committees and 
individual Director has been carried out in accordance 
with the framework.

	 Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was 
done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent 
Director being evaluated. The Directors expressed 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. The 
performance assessment of Non-Independent Directors, 
Board as a whole and the Chairman were evaluated at 
separate meetings of Independent Directors. The same 
was also discussed in the meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board.

	 During the reporting period, no adverse remarks or 
qualifications were notified and/or in respect of the 
Board, its committees and/or any of the Directors.

14.	� COMPOSITION OF BOARD, NUMBER OF BOARD 
MEETINGS & ITS POLICY

	 The existing policy is having a blend of appropriate 
combination of executive, non-executive and 
independent directors to maintain the independence 
of the Board and separate its functions of governance 
and management. As of March 31, 2025, the Board 
had 5 (Five) members, consisting of 2 (Two) executive 
directors, 01(One) non-executive & independent director 
of the board is a woman and 2 (Two) Independent 
directors. Dates for Board Meetings are well decided 
in advance and communicated to the Board and the 
intervening gap between the meetings was within the 
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Listing Agreement. The information as required 
under Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule II Part A of 
the LODR is made available to the Board. The agenda and 
explanatory notes are sent to the Board in advance. The 
Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws 
applicable to the Company. The Board meets at least 
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once a quarter to review the quarterly financial results and other items on the agenda and also on the occasion of the Annual 
General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Shareholders. Additional meetings are held, when necessary.

	 Further, Committees of the Board usually meet on the same day of formal Board Meeting, or whenever the need arises for 
transacting business. The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval and 
noting.

	 During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company held 10 (Ten) board meetings of the Board of Directors as per Section 
173 of Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 was adhered to while 
considering the time gap between two meetings.

Sr No. Dates of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present

1. 21-05-2024 5 5
2. 14-08-2024 5 4
3. 15-10-2024 5 4
4. 11-11-2024 5 5
5. 06-12-2024 5 5
6. 17-12-2024 5 5
7. 06-01-2025 5 5
8. 22-01-2025 5 5
9. 22-02-2025 5 5
10. 27-03-2025 5 5

	 Attendance details of Directors for the year ended March 31, 2025 are given below:

Name of the Directors Category No. of Board Meetings attended

Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Managing Director 10
Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid Whole–time Director 10
Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Independent Director 10
Mr. Shivani Shivshankar Tiwari Independent Director 9
Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Independent Director 9

15.	� FORMATION OF THE COMMITTEES OF THE 
BOARD

	 The Company has several committees, which have 
been established as part of best corporate governance 
practices and comply with the requirements of the 
relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

	 As on March 31, 2025 Company has five Committees 
namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Independent Director Committee and Internal Constitution 
Committee. The details of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees is placed on the Company’s website 
at www.ducol.com

	 The Directors have devised proper systems and 
processes for complying with the requirements of 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

	� COMPOSITION AND NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE 
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

	 Your Company has formed an Audit Committee 
pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. All members of the Audit Committee 
are Independent Director possess strong knowledge of 
accounting and financial management.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, 06 (Six) meetings 
of the Committee were held the dates of which are  
21st May, 2024, 14th August, 2024, 15th October, 2024, 
11th November, 2024 and 6th December, 2024 and  
27th March, 2025

http://www.ducol.com
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	 Details of Composition of the Committee:

Sr. 
No Name of Director Position in Committee No. of Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Chairperson, Independent Director 06
2 Ms. Shivani Tiwari Member, Independent Director 06
3 Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Member, Independent Director 06

	 The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s 
financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity 
and quality of financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the 
Management, the statutory auditor and notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them.

	 COMPOSITION OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

	 Pursuant to Section 177 read with Regulation 19 of Securities Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
requirements) 2015, your Company has formed a Nomination & Remuneration Committee to lay down norms for identifying 
persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall specify the manner for effective 
evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and 
compliance.

	 Furthermore, Nomination& remuneration committee look after remuneration payable to directors, key managerial personnel 
and senior management.

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employee’s determination of qualified Directors for induction in the board remuneration of 
the executive as well as non-executive directors and executives at all levels of the Company.

	 The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package with 
optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, 02 (Two) meeting of the Committee were held on 14thAugust, 2024 and  
15th October, 2024.

	 Details of the Composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

Sr. 
No Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Chairperson, Independent Director 02
2 Miss Shivani Tiwari Member, Independent Director 02
3 Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Member, Independent Director 02

	 The Board of Directors has framed a policy which 
lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of 
Directors. This policy also lays down criteria for selection 
and appointment of Board Members.

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is authorized 
to decide Remuneration to Executive Directors. The 
Remuneration structure comprises of Salary and 
Perquisites. Salary is paid to Executive Directors within 
the Salary grade approved by the Members.

The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been 
assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package with 
optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay.

In terms of requirements prescribed under Section 178(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy inter-alia providing the terms for appointment and 
payment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel.

The policy is available on our website https://www.ducol.com.

https://www.ducol.com
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	 During the year under review, the details of remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as under:

Sr. 
No. Name of Directors and KMP Designation Remuneration per annum  

(` In Lakhs.)

1 Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Whole–time Director 84.00
2 Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid Whole–time Director 78.00
3. Mr. Rehmat Shaikh (Appointed w.e.f. 15th October, 2024) Chief Financial Officer 9.64
4. Mrs. Manisha Agrawal  (Resigned w.e.f. 1st July, 2024) Chief Financial Officer 1.78
5. Ms. Sabina Qureshi Company secretary 8.12

	 Nomination and Remuneration Policy

	 The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors. This 
policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The Board of Directors is authorized to 
decide Remuneration to Executive Directors. The Remuneration structure comprises of Salary and Perquisites. Salary is 
paid to Executive Directors within the Salary grade approved by the Members. The Nomination & Remuneration committee 
has been assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package with optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary 
outlay.

	 In terms of requirements prescribed under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy inter-alia providing the terms for appointment and payment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel.

	 During the year, there have been no changes to the Policy. The same is annexed to this report as “Annexure II” and is 
available on our website www.ducol.com.

	 COMPOSITION OF THE STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 20 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee reviews Shareholder’s/ Investor’ 
s complaints. This Committee is also empowered to consider and resolve the grievance of other stakeholders of the 
Companyincluding security holders.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, 02 (Two) meetings of the Committee were held, the dates of which are 21st May, 
2024 and 11th November, 2024.

Sr. 
No Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Chairman, Independent Director 02

2 Miss Shivani Tiwari Member, Independent Director 02

3 Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Member, Independent Director 02

4 Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Member, Managing Director 02

	 Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

	 The details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 are given in the Table 
below. The complaints relate to non-receipt of annual report, dividend, share transfers, other investor grievances, etc.

	 Details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2024-25:

Particulars Number of Compliant

Opening as on April 1, 2024 -
Received during the year -
Resolved during the year -
Closing as on March 31, 2025 -

http://www.ducol.com
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	� CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY

	 During the financial year 2024-25 the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company. However, in alignment with the Company’s commitment towards 
social responsibility and sustainable development, the Company voluntarily undertook CSR activities and incurred an 
expenditure of ` 58,48,345/- towards various CSR initiatives.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, 02 (Two) meeting of the Committee were held on 14th August, 2024 and  
15th October, 2024.

	� Details of the Composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

Sr. 
No Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings Attended

1. Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Chairman, Independent Director 2
2. Miss Shivani Tiwari Member, Independent Director 2
3. Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Member, Independent Director 2
4. Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Member, Managing Director 2

	 Further, the Company has voluntarily constituted a CSR Committee to guide and oversee CSR initiatives and ensure 
structured implementation of the CSR policy.

	 The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy as per the requirements of the Act and the same is available on 
the website of the Company.

	 The salient features of this policy are as follows:

	 • 	 The Company believes that serving society is a primary purpose.

	 • 	 Perceivable improvement in attitude, culture and values amongst employees and community.

	 • 	 Conservation of natural resources and commitment to Green Environment.

	 • 	 Developing business processes which are environmentally and socially sustainable.

	 The Corporate Social Responsibility Report in the required format is given as an Annexure V to this report.

16.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby 
confirm that:

	 a)	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

	 b)	 the directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company at the end of the financial year and 
of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

	 c)	 the directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

	 d)	 the directors have prepared the annual accounts on 
a ‘going concern’ basis;

	 e)	 the directors have laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and 
were operating effectively.

	 f)	 the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

17.	 CODE FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

	 Your Company has adopted the Internal Code of conduct 
for Regulating, monitoring and reporting of trades by 
Designated persons under the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 
2015 (“Code”) for prohibition of insider trading in the 
securities of the DUCOL to curb the practice for dealing 
in the securities while having Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information (“UPSI”) by the Insiders of the Company.
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	 The Code, inter alia, prohibits dealing in securities 
by insiders while in possession of unpublished 
price sensitive information. The said Code has been 
amended, from time to time, to give effect to the various 
notifications/circulars of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (“SEBI”) with respect to the SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

	 Your Company has also formulated and adopted 
the Policy and Procedures for inquiry in case of leak 
or suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information [Under Regulation 9A (5) of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Prevention of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015].

18.	� PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED 
DISCLOSURES

	 The information required pursuant to Section 197 
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment 
Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the Company, is 
enclosed as “Annexure III” and forms an integral part of 
this report.

	 Further, as per the provisions specified in Chapter XIII of 
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016, none of the 
employees of the Company are in receipt of remuneration 
exceeding ` 1,02,00,000/- per annum, if employed for 
whole of the year or ` 8,50,000/- per month if employed 
for part of the year.

19.	 ANNUAL RETURN

	 Pursuant to Notification dated 28th August, 2020 issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs as published in the 
Gazette of India on 28th August, 2020, the details forming 
part of the extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is not 
required to be annexed herewith to this report. However, 
the Annual Return will be made available at the website 
of the Company at: www.ducol.com.

20.	 �DETAILS  OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

	 As of the balance sheet date, March 31, 2025, the 
Company did not have any subsidiaries.

	 However, after this date, Bitumag Industries Private 
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary. This 
occurred following the execution of a Share Purchase 
Agreement on March 27, 2025, and the transfer of 100% 
of its equity share capital on April 17, 2025, in accordance 
with Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Given that Bitumag Industries Private Limited became a 
subsidiary subsequent to the balance sheet date (March 
31, 2025), the statement required to be enclosed in Form 
AOC-I is not applicable for the financial year 2024-25.

	 Additionally, as of the date of this report, the Company 
has no other Holding, Joint Venture, or Associate 
Companies.

21.	� STATUTORY AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ 
REPORT:

	 The Members of the Company at the 29th Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’) held on September 26,2023 approved the 
appointment M/s Choudhary Choudhary& Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002910C), and they 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office till the conclusion of the 34th Annual General 
Meeting.

	 The Independent Auditors’ Report for fiscal year 2025 
provided by M/s Choudhary Choudhary& Co, Chartered 
Accountants does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, or adverse remark. The Independent 
Auditors’ Report is integrated in the 31st Annual Report.

22.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT

	 Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act,2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, made there under, 
mandate the company to have Company Secretary 
in practice for furnishing secretarial audit report.
Accordingly, M/s Deep Shukla & Associates has been 
appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 
The Board of Directors of your company has already 
appointed Messrs. Deep Shukla & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, Mumbai, a peer-reviewed firm, 
to act as the Secretarial Auditor. The Secretarial Audit 
Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, as 
required under Section 204 of the Act.

	 The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for fiscal 2025 does 
not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse 
remark. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report is enclosed as 
“Annexure IV” to the Board’s report, which forms part of 
this Integrated Annual Report.

23.	 INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS

	 The Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to the financial statement. During 
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation was noticed. 
The Audit Committee of the Board periodically reviews 
the internal control systems with the management and 
Statutory Auditors.

	 Further, M/s. A.P & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Reg. No. 100040W) acting as an Internal Auditor of the 
Company for a term of five (5) years i.e., from Financial 
Year 2022-23 to 2026-27.
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24.	 EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION PLAN

	 Your Company has not provided stock options to any 
employee.

25.	 VIGIL MECHANISM

	 In pursuant to the provisions of sections 177(9) & (10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for 
directors and employees to report genuine concerns has 
been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.ducol.
com. The employees of the Company are made aware of 
the said policy at the time of joining the Company.

26.	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

	 The Company does not fall under the ambit of top 
1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of market 
capitalization as at the end of the immediately preceding 
financial year. Hence, compliance under Regulation 21 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable. However, the 
Company has laid down the procedure to inform the 
Board about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures. These procedures are reviewed by the Board 
annually to ensure that there is timely identification and 
assessment of risks, measures to mitigate them, and 
mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring and 
reporting.

27.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

	 Your Company is committed to achieving and adhering 
to the highest standards of Corporate Governance. 
However, the provisions of Corporate Governance are not 
applicable to the Company pursuant to Regulation read 
with Regulation 15(2)(b) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 However, your Company undertakes that when the above 
said provision is applicable to the Company the same will 
be duly complied with in the period of 6 months.

28.	 DEPOSITS

	 The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any 
fixed deposits during the year under review under Section 
76 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed 
deposits, unclaimed / unpaid interest, refunds due to 
the deposit holders or to be deposited to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund as on March 31, 2025.

29.	 LOANS & GUARANTEES

	 During the year under review, the Company has not 
provided any loan, guarantee, security or made any 

investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to any person or other body 
corporate.

30.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

	 During the financial year under review, all the Related 
party transactions are disclosed in the notes provided in 
the financial statements which forms part of this Annual 
Report. All the transactions/contracts/arrangements 
entered by the Company during the year under review with 
related party (/ies) are in the ordinary course of business 
and on arms’ length basis. As the transactions entered do 
not fall under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and there are no material Related Party transactions, 
which may conflict the interest of the Company, hence 
Form AOC-2 is not required to be furnished.

	 None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or 
transactions vis-à-vis the Company.

	 The details of the related party transactions as per Indian 
Accounting Standard 24 are set out in Note No. 39 to the 
Significant Accounting policies part of this report.

31.	� CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

	 The details of conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as 
follows:

	 (a) 	 Conservation of Energy:

		  The use of energy is being optimized through 
improved operational methods. Continuous efforts 
are being made to optimize and conserve energy by 
improvement in production process. Even though 
its operations are not energy-intensive, significant 
measures are taken to reduce energy consumption 
by using energy-efficient equipment. The Company 
regularly reviews power consumption patterns 
in its all locations and implements requisite 
improvements/changes in the process in order to 
optimize energy/ power consumption and thereby 
achieve cost savings.

		  Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

		  The Company has not made any investment for 
utilizing alternate source of energy.

		  Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment;

		  The Company has taken adequate measures to 
conserve energy by way of optimizing usage of 
power.

http://www.ducol.com
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	 (b) 	 Absorption of Technology:

		  The efforts made towards technology absorption:

		  In this era of competition, in order to maintain and increase the number of clients and customers, we need to provide 
the best quality services to our clients and customers at a minimum cost, which is not possible without innovation, and 
adapting to the latest technology available in the market for providing the services.

		  The Company has not imported any technology during the year under review;

		  The Company has not expended any expenditure towards Research and Development during the year under review.

		  Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

(` Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
31st March, 2025

Year ended  
31st March, 2024

Earning in Foreign Exchange 692.68 870.22
Expenditure in Foreign Currency
CIF Value of Import Purchase 197.18 234.70
Foreign Travelling Expenses 14.96 23.20

32.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

	 The Company is committed to discharging its social responsibility as a good corporate citizen.

	 Pursuant to the section 135 of the act, the Board has recommended, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) 
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company. The CSR Policy is displayed on the website of the Company at 
www.ducol.com. Report on CSR activities undertaken by the Company is appended to this report as “Annexure – V”.

33.	 COST AUDIT / COST RECORDS

	 As per the Cost Audit Orders and in terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is not applicable to our Company. However, 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, the Company has maintained cost records.

34.	� DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

	 As per the provisions of Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee for redressal of complaints against sexual 
harassment.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, there were no cases filed /reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of women 
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the details are mentioned below.

Number of Complaints of Sexual harassment received in the year NIL
Number of Complaints disposed off during the year NIL
Number of Cases pending for more than ninety days NIL
Number of workshops or awareness programme against sexual harassment carried out 01
Nature of action taken by employer or District officer NIL
Number of Cases filed NIL
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35.	� LISTING OF SHARES WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 
AND DEMATERIALISATION

	 The shares of the Company were listed on National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited on Small, Medium Enterprise 
(“SME”) on Thursday, January 19, 2023 only.The annual 
listing fees for FY 2025-26 has been paid to the Stock 
Exchange. Further, Complete Shareholding of the 
Company is in dematerialized form.

36.	 SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

	 The Company has complied with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards on Meeting of the Board (SS-1) 
and General Meetings (SS-2) specified by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. The Directors have devised 
proper systems and processes for complying with the 
requirements of applicable Secretarial Standards issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

37.	� SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED 
BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

	 There are no significant and material orders passed by 
the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations.

38.	� MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY

	 During the year under review there were no material 
changes which would affect the financial position of the 
Company.

39.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

	 Your directors take this opportunity to thank and 
acknowledge with gratitude, the contributions made 
by the employees through their hard work, dedication, 
competence, commitment and co-operation towards 
the success of your Company and have been core to our 
existence that helped us to face all challenges.

	 Your directors are also thankful for consistent  
co-operation and assistance received from its 
shareholders, investors, business associates, customers, 
vendors, bankers, regulatory and government authorities 
and showing their confidence in the Company.

			   On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
			   Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
	 (Din: 00711705)	 (Din: 00711968)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 20, 2025

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road,  
Churchgate, Mumbai 400020
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Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report
Forward looking statement -

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the 
Company describing the Company’s objectives, expectations 
or predictions may be forward looking within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws and regulations. Forward 
looking statements are based on certain assumptions and 
expectations of future events.

The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and 
expectations are accurate or will be realized. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise 
forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 
developments, information or events. Actual results may differ 
materially from those expressed in the statement. Important 
factors that could influence the Company’s operations include 
changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic 
developments within the country and such other factors 
globally.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention, in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP) on an accrual basis. The company has prepared these 
financial statements to comply in all material respects with 
the accounting standards notified under the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable and the 
guidance notes, standards issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. As per MCA notification dated 16th 
February 2015, companies whose shares are listed on SME 
exchange as referred to in Chapter XB of SEBI (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2009 are 
exempted from the compulsory requirement of adoption 
of IND-AS. As the Company is covered under the exempted 
category, it has voluntarily adopted IND-AS for preparation of 
the financial results. The management of Ducol Organics and 
Colours Limited has used estimates and judgments relating to 
the financial statements on a prudent and reasonable basis, 
in order that the financial statements, reflect in a true and fair 
manner, the state of affairs and profit for the year.

The following discussions on our financial condition and 
result of operations should be read together with our audited 
consolidated financial statements and the notes to these 
statements included in the annual report. Unless otherwise 
specified or the context otherwise requires, all references 
herein to “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, “Ducol” are to Ducol 
Organics and Colours Limited

About the Company

Ducol Organics and Colours has emerged as a prominent 
industry player, solidifying its position over the course of  
3 decades. Having originated as a small laboratory in 1990, 
the Company has achieved notable advancements in product 
development, innovation, and enhancements. Commercial 
production commenced in 1996, marking the beginning of 
Ducol’s journey to cater to diverse sectors such as Paints, 
Inks, Textile, Paper, Rubber, Plastics, and FMCG through its 
extensive range of pigment dispersions and color solutions.

As a specialized manufacturing enterprise, Ducol excels in 
producing and distributing pigment dispersions, preparations, 
concentrates, paste colorants, and master batches. 
The Company operates across three well-established 
manufacturing facilities, including two plants situated in 
Taloja and one in Mahad, that facilitate the development of 
robust process capabilities and application techniques for its 
product portfolio.

Ducol’s customer base spans the entire Indian market, 
delivering comprehensive product solutions tailored to meet 
diverse needs. By virtue of its integrated operations, the 
Company ensures a seamless experience, offering customers 
the highest quality products alongside exceptional service.

Global Economic Outlook

The global economic outlook for 2024 and 2025 shows 
moderate growth, with projections at 3.1% and 3.2% 
respectively. This forecast is slightly higher than previous 
estimates due to stronger economic activities in the United 
States and some large emerging markets, along with fiscal 
support in China. However, this growth rate is still below the 
average growth seen from 2000 to 2019. The improvement 
in the forecast is partly because these economies are doing 
better than expected, which helps the global economy.

Inflation, which has been a significant concern globally, is 
expected to decrease. By 2024, the global inflation rate is 
projected to fall to 5.8% and further down to 4.4% by 2025. 
This decline is attributed to the easing of supply chain issues 
and strict monetary policies by central banks. These measures 
are helping to reduce the cost of goods and services more 
quickly than anticipated, which is good news for consumers 
and businesses alike.

Despite these positive signs, the global economy faces several 
challenges. High debt levels and the withdrawal of fiscal 
support in many countries are likely to slow economic growth. 

Annexure I
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Additionally, while advanced economies like the United States 
and Europe are expected to see slight improvements in 
growth, emerging markets and developing economies might 
experience a slowdown. This mixed growth pattern reflects 
the varying impacts of economic policies and external factors 
across different regions.

Looking ahead, the risks to the global economy are considered 
balanced. There could be better-than-expected outcomes 
if inflation continues to decrease rapidly, allowing for more 
relaxed monetary policies. However, there are also potential 
downsides, such as unexpected spikes in commodity prices 
or further economic disruptions from geopolitical tensions. 
Overall, while the global economic landscape shows signs of 
resilience, it remains laden with uncertainties that could shift 
the growth trajectory.

Source:https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/
Issues/2024/01/30/world-economic-outlook-update-
january-2024

https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO

https ://www. imf .org/ -/media/F i les/Publ icat ions/
WEO/2024/Update/January/English/text.ashx

Indian Economic Outlook

The Indian economy in 2024 has demonstrated remarkable 
resilience and robust growth, despite facing global 
uncertainties and geopolitical challenges. According to the 
Press Information Bureau, India’s Real GDP is projected to 
grow at 7.3% for FY 2023-24. Strong domestic demand for 
consumption and investment, along with Government’s 
continued emphasis on capital expenditure are seen as 
among the key driver of the GDP.

On the supply side, industry and services sectors were the 
primary growth drivers. India has registered the highest growth 
among major advanced and emerging market economies 
during this period. The strength of the domestic demand has 
driven the economy to a 7 per cent plus growth rate in the last 
three years.

The robustness seen in domestic demand, namely, private 
consumption and investment, traces its origin to the reforms 
and measures implemented by the government over the last 
ten years. The supply side has also been strengthened with 
investment in infrastructure – physical and digital – and 
measures that aim to boost manufacturing. These have 
combined to provide an impetus to economic activity in the 
country.

As per the IMF, India is likely to become the third-largest 
economy in 2027. Fiscal policy has played a crucial role in 
India’s economic performance. The government has increased 
its capital expenditure outlay by 11.1% to `11,11,111 crore for 
the next fiscal year, which is expected to have a substantial 
multiplier effect on economic growth and employment 
creation.

S o u r c e : h t t p s : // p i b . g o v . i n / P r e s s R e l e a s e P a g e .
aspx?PRID=2001124

https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/The%20Indian%20
Economy-A%20Review_Jan%202024.pdf

Indian Specialty Chemical Sector

The Indian specialty chemicals sector is experiencing 
significant growth and development, with several key trends 
and projections shaping its future. As of 2024, the sector is 
poised for expansion, driven by increasing demand from 
various end-user industries such as food processing, personal 
care, and home care. India, holding a modest share of around 
3% in the global specialty chemicals market, is expected to 
witness a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 11% until 
FY26. This growth is attributed to the export of insecticides 
and the demand from the textile industry, with agrochemicals, 
dyes, and pigments accounting for 51% of the market share in 
the Indian specialty chemicals sector.

The sectors of construction chemicals, flavors and 
fragrances, and dyes and pigments are identified as key 
drivers for the domestic specialty chemicals industry’s 
growth. The industry’s expansion is further supported by the 
Indian government’s initiatives, such as the introduction of a 
production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme aimed at promoting 
domestic manufacturing of agrochemicals and the allocation 
of significant funds to the Department of Chemicals and 
Petrochemicals in the Union Budget 2023-24.

The specialty chemicals market in India represents 22% of 
the country’s overall chemicals and petrochemicals market, 
valued at USD 32 billion. It accounts for more than 50% of 
all chemical exports from India, with the top 10 specialty 
chemical manufacturers experiencing a CAGR of over 20% 
between FY15-FY20. The growth of the Indian specialty 
chemicals market is driven by factors such as strong process 
engineering capabilities, low-cost manufacturing, and 
abundant manpower. Government policies like the PCPIR 
policy and PLI schemes have bolstered manufacturers’ 
confidence to invest within the country.

Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/chemical-industry-india

https://www.thehindubusinessline.com/portfolio/in-charts-
indian-specialty-chemicals-sector/article67817659.ece

https://kpmg.com/in/en/home/insights/2022/11/specialty-
chemicals-industry-india.html

Indian Paint Industry

The Indian paint industry is on a vibrant growth trajectory, 
with significant developments and projections shaping 
its landscape in 2024. The sector is witnessing a robust 
expansion, driven by various factors including urbanization, 
increased disposable incomes, and a growing inclination 
towards eco-friendly paint solutions. As of 2024, the market 
size of the Indian paint industry is projected to reach $14.61 

https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2024/01/30/world-economic-outlook-update-january-2024
https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2024/01/30/world-economic-outlook-update-january-2024
https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2024/01/30/world-economic-outlook-update-january-2024
https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO
https://www.imf.org/-/media/Files/Publications/WEO/2024/Update/January/English/text.ashx
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billion, underpinned by a compound annual growth rate 
(CAGR) of 1.85% from 2024 to 2028. This growth is attributed 
to the rising demand for paints across different segments, 
including residential and industrial applications, fueled by 
urban expansion and higher consumer spending power. The 
usage of nanotechnology and the increasing influence of the 
architectural industry are two major trends influencing the 
future of India’s paint industry.

A favourable development for the paints and coatings industry 
occurred in fiscal year 2022–23 when the prices of raw 
materials dipped from their previous highs. The input costs 
of the industry saw an improvement in margins due to price 
corrections in crude and other essential components, which 
account for 55% to 60% of the total.

Source: https://www.stockgro.club/blogs/trending/paint-
industry-in-india/

Indian Packaging Industry

The Indian packaging industry is projected to grow 
significantly, reaching a market size of USD 84.37 billion in 
2024 and is expected to expand to USD 142.56 billion by 2029, 
with a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 11.06% during 
this period.

This growth is largely driven by the increasing demand in 
consumer markets, particularly in sectors like processed food, 
personal care, and pharmaceuticals. The industry is one of 
the fastest-growing sectors in India, contributing to various 
manufacturing sectors including agriculture and fast-moving 
consumer goods (FMCG).

Technological advancements and government initiatives 
such as the ‘Make in India’ policy are major factors fueling this 
growth. The industry is also moving towards more innovative 
packaging solutions that enhance the customer experience, 
especially in the food and beverage sector, which dominates 
the market. Additionally, there is a strong emphasis on 
sustainability, with paper packaging emerging as a preferred 
eco-friendly option.

Source: https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/
packaging-industry-in-india

Product Segment Analysis

As part of our diversified portfolio, Ducol continues to make 
significant strides in the pigments, non-pigments, and 
dispersion categories, which are crucial components of our 
overall business growth strategy. These segments have shown 
strong growth potential, driven by increasing demand for high-
quality, specialized solutions across various industries.

•	 Pigments Dispersion: Ducol’s pigment division remains 
a key player in offering innovative solutions for FMCG, 
decorative paints among others. Our focus on delivering 
high-performance pigments that ensure superior colour 
consistency, durability, and application flexibility positions 

us as a market leader. Additionally, our commitment to 
environmentally friendly formulations and sustainable 
pigment technologies is aligned with global industry 
trends toward reduced environmental impact.

•	 Non-Pigments Dispersion: Ducol marks an entry into the 
non-pigment dispersion segment with the acquisition of 
Bitumag Industries, a leading player in high-performance 
waterproofing solutions. Bitumag caters to both 
commercial and residential sectors and is positioned as 
a comprehensive provider for all waterproofing needs, 
delivering innovative and durable protection systems for 
infrastructure — from basements to rooftops. Its diverse 
and specialized product portfolio includes various grades 
of bitumen such as polymer-modified bitumen, emulsion 
bitumen, and multigrade bitumen. With this acquisition, 
Ducol is evolving its dispersion product offerings adding 
the large waterproofing and construction chemicals 
segment, catering to the increasing need for durable, 
high-performance solutions in infrastructure and real 
estate. By investing in innovative dispersion technologies, 
Ducol is well-positioned to capture a larger share of the 
expanding global dispersion market.

Financial Overview

The financial performance of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, is as follows:

Total revenue from operations stood at ` 77.35 crore for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, as against ` 75.41 crore for the 
corresponding previous period, an increase of 2.58% Y-o-Y, 
mainly due to decrease in raw materials cost which has been 
passed on to the customers.

The EBIDTA (earnings before interest, depreciation and tax, 
excluding other income) was ` 7.28 crore for the year ended 
March 31, 2025, as against ` 6.95 crore for the corresponding 
previous period, an increase of 4.80% Y-o-Y. EBITDA margin 
was at 9.42%.

The PAT (profit after tax) was ` 4.62 crore for the year ended 
March 31, 2025, as against ` 4.80 crore for the corresponding 
previous period, a decrease of 3.75% Y-o-Y. PAT Margin was 
at 5.98%.

FY25 EPS was at ` 2.84 vs ` 3.30 in FY24..

Resources and Liquidity

Replace with “Interest Coverage Ratio was at 4.18 times in 
FY25 vs 4.46 times in FY24. 

Current Ratio for FY25 was 2.01 times vs 1.43 times in  
FY 24, this increase  was mainly due increase in current assets 
in FY 25 as compared to previous year (` 84.33 cr in FY25 vs  
` 38.47 cr in FY24).

As on March 31, 2025, the net worth stood at ` 90.23 crore 
and the consolidated debt was at ` 27.31 crore.

The debt-to-equity ratio of the Company stood at 0.3 0crore as 
on March 31, 2025.

https://www.stockgro.club/blogs/trending/paint-industry-in-india/
https://www.stockgro.club/blogs/trending/paint-industry-in-india/
https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/packaging-industry-in-india
https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/packaging-industry-in-india
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Risk and Concerns

Like every business, the Company faces risks, both internal 
and external, in the undertaking of its day-to-day operations 
and in pursuit of its longer-term objectives. A detailed policy 
drawn up and dedicated risk workshops are conducted for 
each business vertical and key support functions wherein risks 
are identified, assessed, analyzed and accepted / mitigated to 
an acceptable level within the risk appetite of the organization. 
The risk registers are also reviewed from time to time.

The Company faces the following Risks and Concerns:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes with market prices – such 
as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect our 
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

Credit Risk

To manage its credit exposure, Ducol has determined a credit 
policy with credit limit requests and approval procedures. 
Company does its own research of client’s financial health 
and project prospects before bidding for a project. Timely 
and rigorous process is followed up with clients for payments 
as per schedule. The Company has suitably streamlined the 
process to develop a focused and aggressive receivables 
management system to ensure timely collections.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has judiciously managed the debt-equity ratio. It 
has been using a mix of loans and internal cash accruals. The 
Company has well managed the working capital to optimize 
the overall interest cost.

Contractual Risk

Ducol follows a meticulous process to evaluate the legal risks 
involved in a contract and ascertain its legal responsibilities 
under the applicable law of the contract. All the worst possible 
scenarios are considered and as a strategic priority with 
consultation from advisors, stringent terms are inserted to 
restrict liabilities to the maximum extent possible.

Competition Risk

Like in most other industries, growth opportunities lead to a rise 
in competition. We face different levels of competition, from 
domestic as well as multinational companies. Furthermore, 
the Company continues to invest in technology and its people 
to maintain a competitive edge. A stable and long-standing 
client base comprising large and mid-sized companies further 
helps maintain a strong order book and insulate the Company 
from this risk. We also mitigate this risk with the quality of 
our infrastructure, our customer-centric approach and our 
ability to innovate customer specific solutions, focusing 

on pricing and aggressive marketing strategy, disciplined 
project executions, coupled with prudent financial and human 
resources management and better control over costs. Thus, 
we do not expect to be significantly affected by this risk.

Input Cost Risk

Our profitability and cost effectiveness may be affected due to 
change in the prices of raw materials, power and other input 
costs. Some of these risks that are potentially significant in 
nature and need careful monitoring are raw material prices, 
and availability of power, among others.

Liability Risk

This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to 
cargo, equipment, life and third parties which may adversely 
affect our business. The Company attempts to mitigate this 
risk through contractual obligations and insurance policies.

Opportunities

Favorable Market Outlook for Indian Growth: The Indian 
market presents a promising outlook for growth, providing 
ample opportunities for our Company to expand and thrive. 
With a growing economy and increasing consumer demand, 
we can capitalize on the favorable market conditions to 
enhance our market share and profitability.

Opportunities to Expand Share in Exports: The potential to 
expand our presence in the global market is significant. By 
leveraging our strengths and capabilities, we can explore and 
capture new export opportunities. This expansion in exports 
can further diversify our revenue streams and contribute to 
our overall growth and success.

Increased Product Portfolio and End User Applications: 
There are possibilities for expanding our product portfolio and 
exploring new end-user applications. By investing in research 
and development, we can introduce innovative products that 
cater to evolving customer needs and tap into emerging 
markets and industries. This diversification can drive revenue 
growth and strengthen our competitive position in the market.

Threats

Technological Obsolescence: Rapid advancements 
in technology pose a threat to our business. To remain 
competitive, we must stay abreast of technological 
developments and continually upgrade our processes, 
machinery, and systems. Failure to adapt to technological 
changes can lead to obsolescence and hinder our ability to 
meet customer expectations.

Attraction and Retention of Human Capital: A key challenge 
lies in attracting and retaining skilled professionals. The 
industry’s success depends on the expertise and talent of our 
workforce. To mitigate this threat, we need to focus on creating 
an attractive work environment, providing opportunities for 
growth and development, and implementing effective talent 
management strategies.
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Execution Risk: Successful execution of our business plans is 
crucial for sustained growth. However, various execution risks, 
such as supply chain disruptions, regulatory compliance, and 
operational challenges, can hinder our progress. It is important 
to identify and mitigate these risks through robust risk 
management practices and proactive contingency planning.

Competition from Local and International Players: The 
industry we operate in is highly competitive, with both local 
and international players vying for market share. To maintain 
our position, we must continuously monitor and analyze the 
competitive landscape, identify our unique value proposition, 
and differentiate ourselves through product quality, innovation, 
customer service, and operational excellence.

Internal Control Systems and Adequacy-

The Company has appointed, M/s. A.P & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 100040W) as an Internal 
Auditor of the Company for a term of five (5) years i.e., from 
Financial Year 2022-23 to 2026-27.The Company has in 
place adequate internal controls covers all significant areas 
of Company’s operations such as accounting and finance, 
procurement, business operations, statutory compliances, 
IT processes, safeguarding the assets and their protection 
against unauthorized use, among others. The Internal Auditor 
performs the internal audit of Company’s activities based 
on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year and 
is approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee 
reviews the report submitted by the internal auditors. 
Suggestions for improvement are considered and the audit 
committee follows up on corrective action. Disciplinary action 
is taken, wherever required, for non-compliance to corporate 
policies and controls.

The Company has also implemented effective systems for 
achieving highest level of efficiency in operations, to achieve 
optimum and effective utilization of resources, monitoring 
thereof and the compliance with provisions all laws including 
the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement, directions 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, labour 
laws, tax laws etc. It also aims at improvement in financial 
management, and investment policy. The System ensures 
appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring.

Human Resources

Ducol has Human Relations and Industrial Relations policies 
in force. These are reviewed and updated regularly in line 

with the Company’s strategic plans. The human relations 
team continually conducts training programs for talent 
development. The Company aims to develop the potential of 
every individual associated with it as a part of its business 
goal. Ducol leverages a mix of experienced as well as young 
talent to drive growth.

The Company values its human resources as the principal 
drivers of change. The Company focuses on providing 
individual development and growth in a work culture that 
encourages team work and high performance.

As on March 31, 2025, the Company had a workforce of 105 
(permanent and contractual).

Outlook

The recovery and growth in the paints and coatings industry 
present a significant opportunity for the pigment and dispersion 
sector, and the Company is well-positioned to capitalize on 
these trends. As the residential construction sector expands 
and home remodeling activities increase, the demand for 
pigments will continue to rise. Ducol, with its enhanced 
production capacity and modern technology, is ready to meet 
growing demand with high-quality and sustainable products. 
The Company is also in the position to leverage its established 
relationships and market presence to secure newer contracts 
and expand its customer base.

After enduring challenging period, it is evident that the market 
has bottomed out, signaling a turning point for our industry. 
We are optimistic about the future as indicators suggest 
a rebound in demand. Our strong cash flow and ongoing 
capital expenditures as part of our long-term growth strategy 
underscores our resilience and commitment to driving our 
business forward. Our unit upgradation at the Taloja facility 
is well underway and is important for us to be prepared to 
meet the evolving needs of the market. This will enhance our 
production capabilities as we are already experiencing notable 
growth in volume and demand.

Looking ahead, we remain dedicated to our core values and 
strategic goals. Our focus on sustainability, research and 
development, and strengthening relationships with customers 
and partners will continue to be our guiding principles. By 
leveraging our expertise and resources, we are confident in 
our ability to deliver sustainable growth.
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Changes in Key Financial Ratios

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with Schedule V part B(1) details of changes in 
Key Financial Ratios is given hereunder:

S. NO. Key Financial Ratio FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

1. Debtors Turnover Ratio times 6.36 6.18

2. Inventory Turnover Ratio times 2.63 2.39

3. Interest Coverage Ratio times 4.32 4.72

4. Current Ratio times 2.01 1.43

5. Debt Equity Ratio times 0.30 0.32

6. Operating Profit Margin % 10.24 9.72

7. Net Profit Margin % 13.92 14.50

*Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary

On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
	 (Din: 00711705)	 (Din: 00711968)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 20, 2025

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road,  
Churchgate, Mumbai 400020
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CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) 
constituted the committee to be known as the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more 
non-executive directors out of which not less than one-half 
are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee 
is an Independent Director. However, the chairperson of 
the company (whether executive or non-executive) may be 
appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee but shall not chair such Committee.”

OBJECTIVE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy 
shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 
49 under the Listing Agreement. The objective of this policy 
is to lay down a framework in relation to the remuneration 
of directors, KMP, senior management personnel and other 
employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

−	 To guide the Board in relation to appointment and 
removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management.

−	 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 
remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees.

−	 To formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Director and the Board.

−	 To evaluate the performance of the members of the 
Board and provide necessary report to the Board for 
further evaluation of the Board.

−	 To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable 
to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

−	 To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management reward linked directly to their effort, 
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the 
Company’s operations.

−	 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure 
long term sustainability of talented managerial persons 
and create competitive advantage.

−	 To develop a succession plan for the Board and to 
regularly review the plan.

−	 To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

−	 To Implement and monitor policies and processes 
regarding principles of corporate governance.

APPLICABILITY

−	 Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)

−	 Key Managerial Personnel

−	 Senior Management Personnel

DEFINITIONS

“Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder, including the modifications, amendments, 
clarifications, circulars or re-enactment thereof.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by 
the Board.

“Company” means Ducol Organics and Colours Limited.

“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.

“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 
149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel 
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and includes –

−	 Managing Director, or Executive Director or manager 
and in their absence, a whole- time director; (includes 
Executive Chairman)

−	 Company Secretary;

−	 Chief Financial Officer; and

−	 Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given 
or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 
includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 
1961.

Annexure - II

Nomination and Remuneration Policy
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“Senior Management” Senior Management means personnel 
of the company who are members of its core management 
team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include 
all members of management one level below the executive 
directors including all functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions 
used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may 
be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 
respectively assigned to them therein.

ROLE AND POWER OF THE COMMITTEE

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the 
Board by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Committee shall:

−	 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director.

−	 Identify persons who are qualified to become Director 
and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial 
and Senior Management positions in accordance with 
the criteria laid down in this policy.

−	 Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and 
Senior Management

(i).	 Appointment criteria and qualifications

	 a.	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at 
Senior Management level and recommend to the 
Board his / her appointment.

	 b.	 A person should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience for the position he / she 
is considered for appointment. The Committee has 
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise 
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient 
/ satisfactory for the concerned position.

	 c.	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the 
employment of any person as Whole-time Director 
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided 
that the term of the person holding this position may 
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with 
the approval of shareholders by passing a special 
resolution based on the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 
justification for extension of appointment beyond 
seventy years.

(ii).	 Term / Tenure

	 a.	 Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

		  −	 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any 
person as its Executive Chairman, Managing 
Director or Executive Director for a term 
not exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one 
year before the expiry of term.

	 b.	 Independent Director:

		  −	 An Independent Director shall hold office for 
a term up to five consecutive years on the 
Board of the Company and will be eligible 
for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of 
such appointment in the Board’s report.

		  −	 No Independent Director shall hold office 
for more than two consecutive terms, but 
such Independent Director shall be eligible 
for appointment after expiry of three years of 
ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall 
not, during the said period of three years, 
be appointed in or be associated with the 
Company in any other capacity, either 
directly or indirectly. However, if a person 
who has already served as an Independent 
Director for 5 years or more in the Company 
as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as 
may be determined by the Committee as 
per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be 
eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 
years only.

		  −	 At the time of appointment of Independent 
Director, it should be ensured that number of 
Boards on which such Independent Director 
serves is restricted to seven listed companies 
as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in 
case such person is serving as a Whole-time 
Director of a listed company or such other 
number as may be prescribed under the Act.

	 c.	 Evaluation

		  −	 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of 
performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel at regular interval 
(yearly).
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	 d.	 Removal

		  −	 Due to reasons for any disqualification 
mentioned in the Act or under any other 
applicable Act, rules and regulations 
thereunder, the Committee may recommend, 
to the Board with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 
Management Personnel subject to the 
provisions and compliance of the said Act, 
rules and regulations.

	 e.	 Retirement

		  −	 The Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel shall retire as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy 
of the Company. The Board will have the 
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior 
Management Personnel in the same position/ 
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining 
the retirement age, for the benefit of the 
Company.

�Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

(i).	 General:

	 −	 The remuneration / compensation / commission 
etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel will be determined by 
the Committee and recommended to the Board 
for approval. The remuneration / compensation / 
commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company and 
Central Government, wherever required;

	 −	 The remuneration and commission to be paid to 
the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with 
the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the 
Articles of Association of the Company and as per 
the provisions of the Act;

	 −	 Increments to the existing remuneration/ 
compensation structure may be recommended by 
the Committee to the Board which should be within 
the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case 
of Whole-time Director;

	 −	 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on 
behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company 
Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying 
them against any liability, the premium paid on 
such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. 
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, 
the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated 
as part of the remuneration.

(ii).	� Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

	 −	 Fixed pay:

		  The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the 
Board on the recommendation of the Committee. 
The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of 
perquisites including, employer’s contribution 
to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club 
fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the 
Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee and approved 
by the shareholders and Central Government, 
wherever required.

	 −	 Minimum Remuneration:

		  If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in 
accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of 
the Act and if it is not able to comply with such 
provisions, with the previous approval of the Central 
Government.

	 −	 Provisions for excess remuneration:

		  If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, 
directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any 
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under 
the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central 
Government, where required, he / she shall refund 
such sums to the Company and until such sum 
is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The 
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum 
refundable to it unless permitted by the Central 
Government.

(iii).	 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

	 −	 Remuneration / Commission:

		  The remuneration / commission shall be fixed 
as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the 
Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.

	 −	 Sitting Fees

		  The Non- Executive / Independent Director may 
receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided 
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed  
` One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee 
or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time.

	 −	 Commission:

		  Commission may be paid within the monetary 
limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit 
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not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company 
computed as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act.

	 −	 Stock Options:

		  An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any 
stock option of the Company.

MEMBERSHIP

−	 The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-
executive directors, majority of them being independent.

−	 Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for 
the Committee meeting.

−	 Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the 
Annual Report.

−	 Term of the Committee shall be continued unless 
terminated by the Board of Directors.

CHAIRMAN

−	 Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent 
Director;

−	 Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a 
member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman 
of the Committee;

−	 In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the 
Committee present at the meeting shall choose one 
amongst them to act as Chairman;

−	 Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee meeting could be present at the Annual 
General Meeting or may nominate some other member 
to answer the shareholders’ queries.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular 
intervals as may be required.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when 
his or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting or 
when his or her performance is being evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers 
appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee.

SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary 
of the Committee.

VOTING

−	 Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings 
shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members 
present and voting and any such decision shall for all 
purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

−	 In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the 
meeting will have a casting vote.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

−	 Proceedings of all meetings must be minutes and signed 
by the Chairman of the Committee at the subsequent 
meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be 
tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

IMPLEMENTATION

−	 The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, 
formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy 
as considered appropriate.

−	 The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or 
more of its members.

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY

−	 The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the 
recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when  
deemed fit.

AMENDMENTS IN THE LAW

−	 Any subsequent amendment/modification in the listing 
agreement and/or other applicable laws in this regard 
shall automatically apply to this Policy.

On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
			   Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
	 (Din: 00711705)	 (Din: 00711968)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 20, 2025

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road,  
Churchgate, Mumbai 400020
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Annexure III

Particulars of Remuneration
[Information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016]

i.	� The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year 2024-25; and

ii.	� The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year 2024-25.

Name & Designation

*Remuneration 
of each Director 

& KMP for 
Financial Year 

2024-25
(Amount in `)

% increase/ 
decrease in 

remuneration 
in the Financial 

Year 2023-24

Ratio of 
remuneration of 

each Directors 
to median 

remuneration of 
employees

A. 	 Independent Directors
	 Miss Shivani Tiwari 1,87,500 0.00 0.34
	 Mr. Abhishek Agrawal 1,87,500 0.00 0.34
	 Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai 1,87,500 0.00 0.34
B. 	 Executive Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
	 Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid (MD) 84,00,000 7.7% 15.29%
	 Mr. Hani Ahmed Farid (WTD) 78,00,000 4.0% 14.20%
	� Mrs. Manisha Agrawal (CFO)(Resigned w.e.f 31st July, 2024) 1,78,050 * 0.32%
�	� Mr. Rehmat Shaikh (CFO) (Appointed w.e.f. 15th October,2024) 9,63,552 ** 1.75%
	 Ms. Sabina Qureshi (CS) 8,11,511 24.82% 1.48%

	 MD – Managing Director, WTD – Whole-time Director, CFO – Chief Financial Officer; CS –Company Secretary

	 * Resigned during the year
	 ** Part of the year

	 Notes:

	 1. 	 Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 is ` 5,49,334/-

		  i.	 The percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-25

Particulars Financial Year 2024-25
(Amount in `)

Financial Year 2023-24
(Amount in `) Increase by%)

Median remuneration of all employees 5,49,334 5,29,739 3.7 %

			   Note: The calculation of % increase in the median remuneration has been done based on comparable employees

iii.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.

	 There were 81 permanents employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025.

iv.	� Average percentile increase/decrease already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration.

	 Average percentile increases in the salaries of employee other than the Key managerial personnel in the Financial Year 
2024-25 was 1 %.
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v.	 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company

		  Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, Senior Management and other employees of the 
Company is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

	 B. 	 Names of other employees who are in receipt of aggregate remuneration of not less than rupees one crore and two 
lakhs during the F.Y. 24-25 or not less than rupees eight lakh and fifty-thousand per month (if employed for part of the 
F.Y. 24-25): NA

	 C. 	 If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the 
aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director 
or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 
two percent of the equity shares of the company: NA

On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
	 (Din: 00711705)	 (Din: 00711968)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 20, 2025

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road,  
Churchgate, Mumbai 400020
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To,
The Members,
Ducol Organics And Colours Limited
Regd. Office: Office No 302, Express Building,
14-E Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020 , 
Maharashtra, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Ducol Organics And Colours Limited 
[CIN: L24239MH1994PLC079015] (hereinafter called the 
Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on my said verification of the Company’s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 
2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 according to the 
provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder as amended;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the rules made thereunder as amended; (Not 
applicable during period).

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and  
Bye-laws framed thereunder as amended;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; (to the extent as may 
be applicable to the Company);

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client;

	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
and

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;(Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

ANNEXURE IV

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1)of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:

(a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

(b)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 
the Stock Exchange viz NSE Ltd along with SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as applicable for respective periods.

During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

•	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

•	 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

•	 All the resolutions were passed with consent of majority 
Directors

I further report that:

•	 there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no 
specific events/actions having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, guidelines and standards.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA &ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(Peer Review Certificate No.: 2093/2022)

Sd/-
DEEP SHUKLA
{PROPRIETOR}

FCS: 5652
Place: Mumbai	 CP NO.5364
Date: 07/08/2025	 UDIN: F005652G000959957
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Annexure to Secretarial Report and forming part of the report
To,
The Members,
Ducol Organics And Colours Limited
Regd. Office: Office No 302, Express Building,
14-E Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020 , Maharashtra, India .

I further state that my said report of the even date has to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial/ Statutory Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these records based on the audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial Records.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happenings of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standard is the responsibility of 
management. My examination is limited to the verification of procedures on test basis and shall not stand responsible for 
any non -compliance.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA &ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(Peer Review Certificate No.: 2093/2022)

Sd/-
DEEP SHUKLA
{PROPRIETOR}

FCS: 5652
Place: Mumbai	 CP NO.5364
Date: 07/08/2025	 UDIN: F005652G000959957
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Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR policy has been formulated in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the relevant amendments / notifications / circulars. The CSR activities 
undertaken / to be undertaken by the Company as per the Company’s Policy.

Composition of CSR Committee: Applicable

Note: Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 states 
that Where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of section 135 does not exceed fifty lakhs rupees, the 
requirement under sub-section (1) of section 135 for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be 
applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board Of 
Directors of such company.

Although the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the financial year 
2024-25, the Company voluntarily constituted a CSR Committee, in line with its commitment to social responsibility.

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:

Sr.No Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings Attended

1. Mr. Ratnakar Venkappa Rai Chairman, Independent Director 2
2. Miss Shivani Tiwari Member, Independent Director 2
3. Mr. Abhishek Agrawal Member, Independent Director 2
4. Mr. Aamer Ahmed Farid Member, Managing Director 2

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee (if any), CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website of the company: - www.ducol.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSRprojects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 ofthe Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): NA

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Sr. 
No Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding 

financial years (in `)
Amount requiredto be set-off forthe financial 

year, if any (in `)

1. 2023-24 -- --
2. 2024-25 -- --

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 5,18,03,000/-

(a) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 10,36,060/-

(b) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

(c) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

Annexure V

Report on CSR Activities

http://Sr.No
http://www.ducol.com


Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25   |  55

(d) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c). ` 10,36,060/-

	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 2024-25

Amount unspent (in `)

Total Amount spent 
for the Financial Year 
2024-25 (if any)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

58,48,345 NIL NIL

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: ` 58,48,345/-

	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the financial year: ` 58,48,345/-

		  Short Summaries

Sr. No Particulars Amount (in `)

I. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
II. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 58,48,345
III. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
IV. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any
NIL

V. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
			   Ducol Organics And Colours Limited

	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
	 (Din: 00711705)	 (Din: 00711968)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 20, 2025

Registered Address:
Office No 302, Express Building, 14-E Road,  
Churchgate, Mumbai 400020
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Standalone 
Financial 

Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of DUCOL ORGANICS AND COLOURS 
LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of  
DUCOL ORGANICS AND COLOURS LIMITED (“the Company”) 
having CIN No L24239MH1994PLC079015, which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the statement 
of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity)  and 
statement of cash flows for the year ended as on 31st March, 
2025 , and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information [in which are included the Returns for 
the period ended on that date audited by the branch auditors 
of the Company’s branches.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 
2025, and profit (changes in equity) and its cash flows for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2025.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are Independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion on the financial statement.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Standalone financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have not found any such matters related 
to the audit of this standalone financial statement which are 
to be reported here.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1.5 of the accompanying Statement, 
which describes that subsequent to the reporting date, the 
Company has completed the acquisition of M/s Bitumag 
Industries Private Limited, effective 17th April 2025. As stated 
in the said note, this acquisition is expected to have strategic 
significance for the Company. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter.

Other Matters

Other matters are those matters other than those that are 
presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in our 
opinion is relevant to user’s understanding of the audit.

First-time Adoption of Ind AS as stated in Note 1 to the financial 
results, the figures for the year ended 31 March 2024 have 
been restated as per Ind AS to make them comparable. These 
adjustments were prepared by the Company’s management 
and have been audited by us.

We draw attention to the disclosures in Note 43 of the financial 
results which describe the transition from previous Indian 
GAAP to Ind AS, and the key reconciliations for equity and total 
comprehensive income under the two frameworks.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
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selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 

adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements.

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended. In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

	 h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The Company does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position.

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

		  iv.	 (a) 	 The Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (b) 	 The Management has represented, 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company 
from any person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;



60   |  DUCOL Organics & Colours Ltd.

			   (c) 	 Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

		  v.	 The dividend declared or paid during the year 
by the company is in compliance with section 
123 of the Companies Act, 2013

		  vi.	 Based on our examination, which includes test 
checks, the company has used accounting 
software ‘SAP Business One’ for maintaining 
its books of accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the 

softwares. Further, during the course of audit 
we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tempered with.

			   As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
on preservation of Audit Trail as per statutory 
requirements for record retention is applicable 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

For Choudhary Choudhary & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 02910C

Alok Kumar Mishra
Partner
Membership No. 124184
UDIN: 25124184BMIADZ2702
Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.05.2025
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DUCOL ORGANICS AND 
COLOURS LIMITED

i.	 (a) 	 In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment:

 		  (1) 	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and 
equipment and relevant details of right-of-use 
assets.

		  (2) 	 The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b) 	 All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year but there is a regular programme of verification 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the title deeds of all 
the immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the company is the lessee and the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are 
held in the name of the company.

	 (d) 	 According to the information and explanations 
provided to us, the Company has not revalued its 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
use assets) or intangible assets during the year 
ended March 31, 2025.

	 (e) 	 According to the information and explanations 
provided to us, there are no proceedings initiated or 
are pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder.

ii.	 a) 	 The Inventory has been physically verified by 
management.

		  In our opinion, the frequency of such verification 
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as 
followed by management were appropriate. No 
discrepancies were noticed on verification between 
the physical stocks and the book records that were 

10% or more in the aggregate of each class of 
inventory.

	 b) 	 The Company has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of `  5 crore (`  15 crore), in 
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from 
bank (NKGSB Co-operative Bank Ltd.) on the basis 
of security of current assets and quarterly returns 
or statements filed by the company with such bank 
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the 
company.

	 c) 	 The company valued its inventory at purchased 
cost.

iii.	 The company has made investments in companies and 
granted unsecured loans to other parties during the year 
in respect of which:

	 a)	 The Company has provided loans during the year 
and details of which are given below:

      Particulars
Advances in  

nature of loans
(Amount in `)

A. Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year

	 1) 	 Subsidiaries 0.00

	 2) 	 Joint Ventures 0.00

	 3) 	 Associates 0.00

	 4) 	 Others 0.00

B. 	 Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date in respect of 
above cases

	 1) 	 Subsidiaries 0.00

	 2) 	 Joint Ventures 0.00

	 3) 	 Associates 0.00
	 4) 	 Others 0.00

		  The Company has not provided any guarantee 
or security to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties.

	 b)	 In our opinion, the investments made and the terms 
and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year 
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest.

“Annexure A” to the Independent 
Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date)
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	 c)	 In respect of loans granted by the company, the 
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of 
principal and payment of interest are generally been 
regular as per stipulation.

	 d)	 In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is 
no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the 
balance sheet date.

	 e)	 No loan granted by the Company which has fallen 
due during the year, has been renewed or extended 
or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of 
existing loans given to the same parties.

	 f)	 The Company has not granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period 
of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

iv.	 The Company has not advanced loans or made 
investments in or provided guarantee or security to 
parties covered by section 185 and section 186 is not 
applicable to the Company. Hence reporting under 
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with 
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 
applicable.

vi.	 As per the information and explanation provided, the 
company has maintained cost records as required by the 
provisions of section 148 of Companies Act, 2013.

vii.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the company is regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and 
explanation given to us there were no outstanding 
statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2025 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

viii.	 There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961).

ix.	 Loans or other borrowings from any lender:

	 (a)	 The Company has availed loans from Banks. 
According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender.

	 (b)	 Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or other lender;

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained;

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us, funds raised on short term basis have not 
been utilized for long term purposes;

	 (e) 	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures;

	 (f) 	 The Company has not raised any loans during the 
year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable.

x.	 The company has not raised any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable.

xi.	  (a) 	 No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year.

	 (b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this report.

	 (c)	 As per information provided, the company did not 
receive any whistle blower complaints during the 
reporting period and hence reporting under clause 
3(xi)(c) is not applicable.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements, as required 
by the applicable accounting standards;
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xiv.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, the Company has an adequate 
internal control commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business.

	 (b) 	 The company is a listed entity and covered by 
section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
company has complied the provisions of Clause 
(xiv) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the order. We have 
consider the reports of the internal auditors report 
for the period under audit.

xv.	 According to the information and explanations provided 
to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with 
its directors. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon.

xvi.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b) 	 In our opinion, there is no core investment company 
within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is 
not applicable.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 

financial statements and our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due.

xx.	 Based on our examination, the provisions of section 
135 of Companies Act 2013 towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility are not applicable on the company. 
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order 
are not applicable.

xxi.	 The company is not required to prepare Consolidate 
financial statement hence this clause is not applicable.

For Choudhary Choudhary & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 02910C

Alok Kumar Mishra
Partner
Membership No. 124184
UDIN: 25124184BMIADZ2702
Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.05.2025
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We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of DUCOL ORGANICS AND COLOURS LIMITED, 
having CIN No L24239MH1994PLC079015 (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

Annexure B” to the Independent 
Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date)

financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
standalone financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of standalone financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the standalone financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
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not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Choudhary Choudhary & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 02910C

Alok Kumar Mishra
Partner
Membership No. 124184
UDIN: 25124184BMIADZ2702
Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.05.2025
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Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2025

(` In Lakh’s)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

ASSETS
I	 NON - CURRENT ASSETS
	 (a)	 Property,Plant and Equipment 2  1,869.72  2,009.41 1,730.14
	 (b)	 Right-of-Use Assets  63.19  87.65 112.11
	 (c)	 Intangible assets 3  1.15  1.22 0.67
	 (d)	 Capital Work In Progress 4  2,292.78  1,482.61 1,134.13
	 (e)	 Investment in Subsidiaries 5
	 (f)	 Financial assets
		  (i)	  Investments 5 371.21 208.78 125.80
		  (ii)	 Others 6 137.92 2,288.26 2,174.16
	 (g)	 Other non - current assets 7 393.09 94.45
II	 CURRENT ASSETS
	 (a)	 Inventories 8 1,929.56 1,979.26 2,090.64
	 (b)	 Financial assets
		  (i)	 Trade receivables 9 1,216.66 1,219.93 997.47
		  (ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 10 206.25 40.38 281.46
		  (iii)	� Bank balances other than cash and cash 

equivalents
11 4,893.22 520.68 500.00

		  (iv)	 Others 12 2.76 12.87 4.13
	 (c)	 Current Tax Assets (Net)
	 (d)	 Other current assets 13 184.71 73.84 125.33
Total Assets 13,562.22 10,019.34 9,276.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I.	 EQUITY
	 (a)	 Equity Share capital 14 1,629.40 1,454.00 1,454.00
	 (b)	 Other equity 15 7,393.81 4,977.15 4,613.02
LIABILITIES
II	 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities
		  (i)	 Long Term Borrowings 16 51.70 594.85 965.79
		  (ii)	 Lease Liabilities 71.27 92.78 112.11
		  (iii)	 Other Financial Liabilities
	 (b)	 Provisions 17 103.45 102.30 82.69
	 (c)	 Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 18 120.82 113.44 149.93
III	 CURRENT LIABILITIES
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities
		  (i)	 Short Term Borrowings 19 2,678.86 1,440.74 314.07
		  (ii)	 Trade payables 20 1,291.45 1,040.04 1,315.90
		  (iii)	 Other financial liabilities 21 0.16 0.09 -
	 (b)	 Other current liabilities 22 122.68 122.50 136.49
	 (c)	 Provisions 23 98.62 81.45 132.05
	 (d)	 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Total Equity and Liabilities 13,562.22 10,019.34 9,276.06
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone 
financial statement.

As per our report of even date attached
For Choudhary Choudhary & Co	 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Ducol Organics and Colours Limited
Firm Regn No. 002910C	

Alok Kumar Mishra	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
Partner	 Managing Director	 Whole-time Director
M. No. 124184	 DIN : 00711705	 DIN : 00711968
UDIN No: 25124184BMIADZ2702
	 Rehmat Shaikh	 Sabina Qureshi
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  M. No. 65859	
Place: Mumbai	 Place: Mumbai
Dated: 21.05.2025	 Dated: 21.05.2025
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As per our report of even date attached
For Choudhary Choudhary & Co	 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Ducol Organics and Colours Limited
Firm Regn No. 002910C	

Alok Kumar Mishra	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
Partner	 Managing Director	 Whole-time Director
M. No. 124184	 DIN : 00711705	 DIN : 00711968
UDIN No: 25124184BMIADZ2702
	 Rehmat Shaikh	 Sabina Qureshi
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  M. No. 65859	
Place: Mumbai	 Place: Mumbai
Dated: 21.05.2025	 Dated: 21.05.2025

Standalone Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(` In Lakh’s)

Particulars Note 
No.

Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

I. Revenue from operations 24 7,735.34 7,540.50 9,073.30
II. Other income 25 284.48 360.74 70.69

Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Financial Investments 
(FVTPL)

63.92 37.85 -

III. Total Income ( I+II) 8,083.74 7,939.10 9,143.99
IV. EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 26 4,957.08 4,670.33 5,868.61
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - 97.40 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 
and work in progress

27 111.37 64.91 (94.33)

Employee benefits expense 28 813.27 793.77 725.74
Finance costs 29 194.75 186.59 180.65
Depreciation and amortization expense 262.23 261.87 137.95
Other expenses 30 1,125.23 1,219.03 1,372.60
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Financial Investments 
(FVTPL)
Total expenses (IV) 7,463.93 7,293.90 8,191.24

V. Profit before tax ( III-IV) 619.81 645.19 952.76
VI. Tax expense : - -

Current tax 150.00 185.00 258.00
Deferred tax 7.38 (36.49) 30.37
Income tax relating to earlier years - 16.22 53.19

157.38 164.73 341.56
VII. Profit for the year 462.43 480.46 611.20
VIII Other comprehensive income

(i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
	  Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans

-

(ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will not be
	  reclassified to profit or loss

-

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax -
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year 462.43 480.46 611.20
X. Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share ̀  10/-) 33

- 	 Basic (`) 2.84 3.30 4.20

- 	 Diluted (`) 2.84 3.30 4.20
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 
standalone financial statement.
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Standalone Cash Flow
for the year ended 31st March 2025

(` In Lakh’s)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY
Net Profit Before Taxes 619.81 645.19
Adjustment for other head & non cash expenses
Add: 	 Depreciation & Amortisation 262.23 261.87
	 Finance Cost 194.75 186.59

456.97 448.46
Less: Income From Non Operating Activities:
	 Interest Income 210.90 188.98
	 Profit On Sale Of Car - -
	 Profit On Sale Of Investment - 149.78
	 Gratuity tranfer to OCI as per IND AS (Acturial) 7.67 7.28
	 Dividend Received 0.35 0.35

218.92 346.39
Add/(Less):Operating Profit Before Change In Working Capital 857.86 747.26
		  Adjustment For Working Capital
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Short Term Borrowings 1,238.11 1,126.67
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Trade Payables 251.40 (275.86)
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities 0.19 (13.99)
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Other Financial Liabilities 0.06 0.09
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Short Term Provision 17.17 (50.61)
		  Increase/(Decrease) In Long Term Provision 1.16 19.61
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Inventories 49.69 111.38
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Trade Receivables 3.27 (222.46)
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Short Term Loans And Advances - -
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Long Term Loans And Advances (14.50) 29.70
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Current Assets Tax - -
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Other financial assets - Current 10.11 (8.74)
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Other Non-Current Assets (298.65) (94.45)
		  (Increase)/Decrease In Other Current Assets (110.87) 51.50
		  Cash Generated From Operations 2,005.02 1,420.11
		  Adjustment For Income Tax
		  Less: Income Taxes Paid 150.00 201.22
		  Net Cash Flow From Operating Activity - (A) 1,855.02 1,218.89
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Interest Income 210.90 188.98
(Purchase) / Sale Of Fixed Assets (908.17) (865.70)
Rental Income -
Purchase Of Equity shares (Net, at cost) (162.40) 66.80
Long term FDs with banks 2,164.84 (143.80)
Dividend Income 0.35 0.35
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activity - (B) 1,305.51 (753.37)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Issue Of Shares (Including Share Premium) 2,209.99
Repayment Of Loans (543.15) (370.93)
Lease Liabilities (21.52) (19.33)
Dividend Paid (72.70) (109.05)
Finance Cost (194.75) (186.59)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activity - (C) 1,377.88 (685.91)
CASH GENERATED DURING THE YEAR ( A + B + C ) 4,538.41 (220.39)
Add:	 Cash & Cash Equivalents As On 01.04.2024 561.07 781.46
	 Cash & Cash Equivalents As On 31.03.2025 5,099.47 561.07

As per our report of even date attached
For Choudhary Choudhary & Co	 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Ducol Organics and Colours Limited
Firm Regn No. 002910C	

Alok Kumar Mishra	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
Partner	 Managing Director	 Whole-time Director
M. No. 124184	 DIN : 00711705	 DIN : 00711968
UDIN No: 25124184BMIADZ2702
	 Rehmat Shaikh	 Sabina Qureshi
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  M. No. 65859	
Place: Mumbai	 Place: Mumbai
Dated: 21.05.2025	 Dated: 21.05.2025
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Standalone Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March 2025

As per our report of even date attached
For Choudhary Choudhary & Co	 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Ducol Organics and Colours Limited
Firm Regn No. 002910C	

Alok Kumar Mishra	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
Partner	 Managing Director	 Whole-time Director
M. No. 124184	 DIN : 00711705	 DIN : 00711968
UDIN No: 25124184BMIADZ2702
	 Rehmat Shaikh	 Sabina Qureshi
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  M. No. 65859	
Place: Mumbai	 Place: Mumbai
Dated: 21.05.2025	 Dated: 21.05.2025

(a) 	 Equity Share capital

(` In Lakh’s)
Particulars Balance at the 

beginning of 
the year

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 

to prior period 
errors

Restated 
balance at the 

beginning of the 
reporting year

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the year

Balance at the 
end of the year

For the year ended 31st March, 2023#  300.00  -    300.00  1,154.00  1,454.00 
For the year ended 31st March 2024  1,454.00  -    1,454.00  -    1,454.00 
For the year ended 31st March 2025##  1,454.00  -    1,454.00  175.40  1,629.40 

# During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the company had issued (i) 75,00,000 bonus shares of `10 each, and (ii)  40,40,000 shares of `10 each 
at a premium of `.68 each					   
## During the year ended 31st March, 2025, the company had made preferential allotment of 17,53,958 shares of `10 each at a premium of ` 116 each

(b) 	 Other Equity

(` In Lakh’s)

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 

Components 
of Equity

Total
General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  -    1,908.07  -    1,908.07 
Profit for the year  -    611.20  -    611.20 
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)  -    -    -    -   
Share Premium account  -    2,747.20  2,747.20 
Issue of bonus shares  (750.00)  (750.00)
Transfer from retained earnings  -    -    -    -   
Transfer to general reserve  -    -    -    -   
Final Dividend  -    (30.00)  -    (30.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -    4,486.48  -    4,486.48 
Gain on Revaluation of Investments on Fair value as on 01.04.2023  84.35  84.35 
Net Deferred tax liability as per IND AS  42.19  42.19 
Balance as at 1st April, 2023  4,613.02  4,613.02 
Profit for the year  -    480.46  -    480.46 
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)  -    -    (7.28)  (7.28)
Share Premium account  -    -    -    -   
Transfer from retained earnings  -    -    -    -   
Transfer to general reserve  -    -    -    -   
Final Dividend  -    (109.05)  -    (109.05)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    4,984.43  (7.28)  4,977.15 
Profit for the year  462.43  462.43 
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)  (7.67)  (7.67)
Share Premium account  2,034.60  2,034.60 
Transfer from retained earnings  -   
Transfer to general reserve  -   
Final Dividend  (72.70)  (72.70)
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  -    7,408.77  (14.95)  7,393.81 
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Company Overview:

Ducol Organics and Colours Limited (the company) is a 
public limited company (CIN:U24239MH1994PLC079015) 
incorporated on under the provisions of the Comapnies Act, 
2013 with the Registrar of companies,. Its registered office 
is Express Building, Office No. 302, 3rd Floor, 14-E Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020.

1	 Significant accounting policies:
1.1	 Basis of preparation of financial statements:

	 These Standalone Financial Statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) and other relevant provisions of the act.

	 The Standalone Financial Statements up to and for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025 were prepared in accordance 
with the accounting standards notified under Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) 
(“Previous GAAP”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 As these are the Company’s first standalone financial 
statements prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time 
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been 
applied. An explanation of how the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s 
previously reported financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows is provided in Note 43.

	 Historical cost convention:

	 The Standalone Financial Statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 
following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets 
and liabilities (including 
derivatives instruments)

Fair value

 Net defined benefit 
(asset) / liability

Fair value of plan assets 
less present value of 
defined benefit obligations

	 Current versus non-current classification:

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 
or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services 
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, 
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of current non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

1.2	 Use Of Estimates:

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Indian GAAP requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at 
the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates 
are based on the management’s best knowledge of 
current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

1.3	� Fixed Assets, Intangible assets and capital work in 
progress:

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost, after reducing 
accumulated depreciation and impairment up to the 
date of the Balance Sheet. Direct costs are capitalized 
until the assets are ready for use and include financing 
costs relating to any borrowing attributable to acquisition 
of construction of those fixed assets which necessarily 
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use. Capital work in progress includes the 
cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their 
intended use. Intangible assets, if any, are recorded at 
the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment.

	 Transition to Ind AS:

	 Pursuant to paragraph D7AA of Ind AS 101 – First-time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company 
has elected to continue with the carrying values of all 
its property, plant and equipment, as recognised in its 
previous GAAP financial statements, as the deemed cost 
at the date of transition to Ind AS.

	 Accordingly:

	 • 	 The carrying amount of PPE under previous GAAP 
as at the transition date 31.03.2025 has been 
considered as the deemed cost under Ind AS.

	 • 	 No adjustments have been made to the value of 
PPE on account of Ind AS transition.

	 • 	 The Company has not applied fair value or 
revaluation as deemed cost for any of its PPE 
assets.

	 • 	 This policy has been applied consistently to all 
items of PPE
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	 Subsequent expenditure:

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

1.4	 Depreciation:

	 Depreciation on fixed assets is determined based on 
the estimated useful life of the assets using the written 
down value method as prescribed under the schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. Individual assets costing 
less than ` 5000 or less are depreciated within a year 
of acquisition. Depreciation on assets purchased/sold 
during the period is proportionately charged. Leasehold 
land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period 
of lease. Intangible assets, if any, are amortized over their 
useful life on a straight line method.

1.5	 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:
	 Goodwill:
	 The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the 

Company’s share in the fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities is 
recognized as goodwill. If the excess is negative, a bargain 
purchase gain is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity as Capital reserve. 
Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment 
annually, or more frequently if events or change in the 
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The 
excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Company’s 
share in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognized 
as goodwill. If the excess is negative, a bargain purchase 
gain is recognized in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity as Capital reserve. Goodwill is 
not amortised but is tested for impairment annually, 
or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate 
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses.

	 Other intangible assets:
	 “Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 

on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Internally generated intangible asset arising 
from development activity is recognised at cost on 
demonstration of its technical feasibility, the intention and 
ability of the Company to complete, use or sell it, only if, it 
is probable that the asset would generate future economic 
benefit and the expenditure attributable to the said assets 

during its development can be measured reliably.“

	 Transition to Ind AS:

	 Pursuant to paragraph D7AA of Ind AS 101 – First-time 
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company 
has elected to continue with the carrying values of all 
its property, plant and equipment, as recognised in its 
previous GAAP financial statements, as the deemed cost 
at the date of transition to Ind AS.

	 Accordingly:

	 • 	 The carrying amount of PPE under previous GAAP 
as at the transition date 31.03.2025 has been 
considered as the deemed cost under Ind AS.

	 • 	 No adjustments have been made to the value of 
PPE on account of Ind AS transition.

	 • 	 The Company has not applied fair value or 
revaluation as deemed cost for any of its PPE 
assets.

	 • 	 This policy has been applied consistently to all 
items of PPE

	 Amortisation of Intangible Assets:

	 Intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives on 
written down value method.

	 Investment in Subsidiaries:

	 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an 
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of 
the investment is assessed and written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments 
in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has acquired 
susbidiary only after April 1, 2024.

1.6	 Employee benefits

	 Short Term benefits are recognized as an expense at 
the undiscounted amount in the statement of Profit and 
Loss of the year in which related service is rendered. 
Retirement benefits in form of gratuity, leave encashment 
etc. are accounted for on an accrual basis. The company 
has incurred the liabilities in this respect at the end of 
the year. Provisions of Employees’ Provident Fund and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act and Payment of gratuity 
act are applicable to the company. In compliance with AS 
15 (Revised) Employee Benefits, upto current year ended 
31 March 2025 company has made provision for Gratuity 
at ` 122.86 Lakhs Previous year: ` 109.32 Lakhs.
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1.7	 Government grants

	 Grants and subsidies from the government are 
recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) 
the company will comply with the conditions attached 
to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received. 
When the grants or subsidy related to revenue, it is 
recognized as income on a systematic basis in the 
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary 
to match them with the related costs, which they are 
intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an 
asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released 
to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life 
of the related asset.

	 Government grants of the nature of promoters’ 
contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated 
as a part of the shareholders’ fund.

1.8	 Investments

	 Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to 
be held for not more than one year from the date on which 
such investments are made, are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long 
term investments. Current investments are carried in 
the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis. Long 
term investments are carried at cost. However, provision 
for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline 
other than temporary in the value of the investments. 
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its 
carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

	 Equity investments have been measured at fair value 
through Profit and Loss account (FVTPL) as per Ind AS 
109, with transition adjustments accounted in retained 
earnings as of transition date.

1.9	 Inventories

	 All trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net 
realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined on first 
in first out basis. Scrap is valued at net realizable value 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business.

1.10	Revenue recognition

	 “Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized:

	 Sale of goods
	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of 
the goods. The company collects GST on behalf of the 
government and, therefore, these are not economic 
benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are 
excluded from the revenue.

	 Income from Job work/Services
	 Revenue from Job work/ Services is recognized when 

the contractual obligation is fulfilled and goods/services 
are delivered to the contractee.

	 Interest

	 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis 
taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
applicable rate of interest. Interest income is included 
under the head “Other Income” in the statement of profit 
and loss.

1.11	Income Taxes

	 Tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. 
Current Income tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance 
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
Deferred Income taxes reflect the impact of timing 
differences between taxable income and accounting 
income originating during the current year and reversal 
of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred 
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable 
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for deductible timing differences only to the extent that 
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realized. In situations where the company 
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, 
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidences 
that they can be realized against future taxable profits. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 
Minimum Alternate Tax paid in a year is charged to the 
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company 
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to 
the extent that there is convincing evidence that the 
company will pay normal income tax during the specified 



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2024-25   |  73

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the company 
recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with 
the guidance note on accounting for credit available in 
respect of minimum alternate tax under the income tax 
act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the 
statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit 
Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT credit 
entitlement” at each reporting date.

1.12	Provisions and contingent liabilities

	 The company recognizes a provision when there is 
a present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A 
disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is 
a present obligation that cannot be estimated reliably or 
a possible or present obligation that may, but probably 
will not, require and outflow of resources. Where there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision 
or disclosure is made.

1.13	Earning Per Share

	 Earning per share are calculated by dividing the net 
profit or loss after taxes for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
For the purpose of calculating, diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects 
of dilutive potential equity shares.

1.14	Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax 
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash 
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated based on the available information.
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4.	 Capital Work In Progress	

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Projects Work In Progress
- 	 less than 6 months 362.41 285.66 192.34
- 	 1 year to 2 years 544.22 505.15 472.42
- 	 2 year to 3 years 505.15 348.01 133.29
- 	 More than 3 years 881.00 343.79 336.09

2,292.78 1,482.61 1,134.13
Projects Temporarily Suspended
- 	 less than 6 months - - -
- 	 1 year to 2 years - - -
- 	 2 year to 3 years - - -
- 	 More than 3 years - - -

- - -

5.	 Non-current investments

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

1) Designated at fair value through profit or loss:
(i)	  Quoted
	  In equity shares of Companies
	  Bew Engineering Limited 52.97 60.11 56.85
	� [36,000 (Previous Year: 10,000 and Y.E. 

31.3.2023: 8000)]
	  Equity shares of [` 10 each, fully paid up]
	  Shanthala FMCG 6.11 21.17 -
	�  [25,200 (Previous Year: 25,200 and 

Y.E. 31.3.2023: Nil)]
	  Equity shares of [` 10 each, fully paid up]
	  Vaidya Sane Ayurved Laboratories Limited - - -
	�  [Nil (Previous Year: Nil and Y.E. 31.3.2023: 

20,800)]
	  Equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up

(ii) 	  Unquoted
	  NKGSB Co-oprative Bank Ltd. 230.78 46.16 40.72
	  Shamrao Vithal Co-oprative Bank 0.46 0.46 0.42
	  Apna Sahakari Bank Ltd. 80.88 80.88 27.81

371.21 208.78 125.79
Aggregate market value of quoted Investments
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6.	 Other financial assets - Non current

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good:
Security deposits 117.91 103.41 133.11
Deferred revenue expenditure against security deposit 4.83 4.83 4.83
Fixed deposits with banks 15.18 2,180.02 2,036.22

137.92 2,288.26 2,174.16

7. 	 Other non-current assets 	

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good:
Capital advances 307.25 36.08 -
Advance other than capital advance 85.85 58.37 -

393.09 94.45 -

8. 	 Inventories 

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(At lower of cost and net realizable value, unless stated 
otherwise)
Raw materials 678.43 615.30 656.77
Packing materials 22.21 23.67 28.67
Work-in-progress 568.07 589.92 820.96
Finished goods 660.85 750.37 584.24

1,929.56 1,979.26 2,090.64

For details of inventory hypothecated as security refer Note 24. 

9.	 Trade receivables - Current

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Due from related parties - - -
Due from others 1,280.21 1,258.46 1,011.01

1,280.21 1,258.46 1,011.01
Provision for doubtfull debts (63.55) (38.53) (13.54)

1,216.66 1,219.93 997.47
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Trade Receivable Aging Schedule

(` In Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Undisputed - Considered good
- 	 not yet due 217.86 260.01 590.50
- 	 less than 6 months 862.28 790.89 247.59
- 	 6 months to 1 year 26.83 34.27 5.66
- 	 1 year to 2 years 11.95 8.83 2.10
- 	 2 year to 3 years 0.23 0.56 2.59
- 	 More than 3 years 97.51 125.38 149.02

1,216.66 1,219.93 997.47
Undisputed - which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
Undisputed - Credit impaired - - -
Disputed - Considered good - - -
Disputed - which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
Disputed - credit impaired - - -

1,216.66 1,219.93 997.47

10.	 Cash and cash equivalents	

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Balances with banks:
- 	 In current accounts 94.07 5.71 81.22
- 	 In EEFC accounts 70.53 - -
- 	� Debit balance in CC Account with NKGSB CO OP 

BANK LTD
- - 169.29

164.60 5.71 250.51
Cash on hand 41.65 34.67 30.95

206.25 40.38 281.46

11.	 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend - - -
Fixed deposits with banks: - - -
-	� Current portion of original maturity period more than 

12 months
2,129.68 - -

-	 Original maturity period upto 12 months 2,763.55 520.68 500.00
4,893.22 520.68 500.00



78   |  DUCOL Organics & Colours Ltd.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

12.	 Other financial assets - Current

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good:
- 	 Interest Accrued But Not Due  2.76  12.87  4.13 

 2.76  12.87  4.13 

13. 	 Other current assets

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Loans & Advances:
Advance to Suppliers & Others 8.33 7.25 10.04
Deferred Revenue expenditure [ to the extent not written 
off]

16.01 17.06 65.08

VAT & Government Subsidy 135.66 30.08 32.78
Prepaid Expenses 13.64 15.61 15.44
Export incentive receivable 11.07 3.84 2.00

184.71 73.84 125.33

14. 	 Equity Share capital

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
shares Amount No. of 

shares Amount No. of 
shares Amount

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of par value  
`10 /- each

20000000 2,000.00 15000000 1,500.00 15000000 1,500.00

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully 
paid up
Equity shares of par value `10 /- 
each at the beginning of the year

14540000 1,454.00 14540000 1,454.00 3000000 300.00

Bonus shares issued during the 
year

- - - - 7500000 750.00

Shares issued for cash during 
the year#

1753958 175.40 - - 4040000 404.00

At the end of the year 16293958 1,629.40 14540000 1,454.00 14540000 1,454.00

#Notes:

1. 	 During the year, company has made preferential allotment of equity shares of `10 each at premium of ` 116

2 	 Previous year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has issued 40,40,000 shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 68 Each

(c)	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The holders of Equity Shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
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Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(d)	 Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company :

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

Hani Ahmed Farid 2801290 17.19% 2801290 19.27% 2800800 19.26%
Aamer Ahmed Farid 2800800 17.19% 2800800 19.26% 2801290 19.27%
Ali MohmedAli Bagash 2741400 16.82% 2741400 18.85% 2741400 18.85%
Total Shares at the end of the year 8343490 51.21% 8343490 57.38% 8343490 57.38%

(e)	 Shares hold by the promoters  and promoters group at the end of the year

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

No. of 
shares held

 % of 
holding 

Hani Ahmed Farid 2800800 17.19% 2800800 19.27% 2800800 19.26%
Aamer Ahmed Farid 2801290 17.19% 2801290 19.26% 2801290 19.27%
Ali MohmedAli Bagash 2741400 16.82% 2741400 18.85% 2741400 18.85%
Total Shares at the end of the year 8343490 51.21% 8343490 57.38% 8343490 57.38%

(f)	 Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without  
payment being received in cash: Nil

(g)	 Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid by way of Bonus Shares: 7500000 equity shares in  
2022-2023

(h)	 Aggregate number and class of shares bought back: NiL

(i)	 Securities which are convertible into Equity Shares: NiL

(j)	 Aggregate Value of Calls unpaid by directors and officers: NiL

(k)	 The Company being ultimate holding company, there are no shares held by any other holding, ultimate holding company  
and their subsidiaries

15.	 Other equity

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(a) General reserve
Balance as per last account - - -
Add: Transfer from Retained earnings - - -

- - -
(b) Share Premium 4,781.80 2,747.20 2,747.20
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(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(c) Retained earnings
Balance as per Last Account 2,229.95 1,865.82 1,908.07
Gain on Revaluation of Investments on Fair value as 
on 01.04.2023

84.35

Net Deferred tax liability as per IND AS 42.19
Surplus as per Statement of Profit and Loss 462.43 480.46 611.20
Other Comprehensive Income(net of tax) (7.67) (7.28) -
Amount available for appropriation 2,684.71 2,339.00 2,645.82
Appropriations:
	 Bonus share issued - - (750.00)
	 Dividend on equity shares (72.70) (109.05) (30.00)
	 Transfer to general reserve - - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,612.01 2,229.95 1,865.82
Total other equity 7,393.81 4,977.15 4,613.02

16.	 Long Term Borrowings

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Long Term Borrowings ( See note below)# 51.70 594.85 965.80
Lease Liabilities -
Other Financial Liabilities -

51.70 594.85 965.80

#Note :

Vehicle loans
Loans against vehicles are secured against hypothecation of vehicles against which loans are taken.
Loans are guaranteed by the Managing Director and Wholetime Director
Rate of Interest: 9%

(Previous years include Term Loan from Apna Sahakari Co - Operative Bank ltd
Primary :- First charge by way of mortgage & hypothecation of following immovable fixed assets:
a) 	 Land & buildlng situated at Plot No.22/2 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist - Raigad.
b) 	 Land & building situated on Plot No. T-5/1 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist - Raigad.)

Term Loan with NKGSB Bank - Company has been sanctioned Term loan of ` 25.8 crore during the year for acuqisition of new businesses, which 
has been availed in April 2025 against the following security:

Primary :- Extension of first charge on Land & building situated at Plot no.K-7 Additional MIDC Mahad, Dist Raigad & hypothecation of movable 
fixed asset at K7, Mahad

Collateral :- First charge by way of hypothecation on fixed assets of the company includes:
a) 	 Land & building situated at Plot No.22/2 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist Raigad.
b) 	 Land & building situated on Plot No. T-5/1 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist - Raigad.

Rate of Interest: 9%
Loan is guaranteed by the Managing Director and Wholetime Director
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17.	 Provisions

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Employee Benefits - Gratuity 103.45 102.30 82.69
103.45 102.30 82.69

18.	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets/
(liability):
On Depreciation  151.74  140.95  172.22 
On Gratuity  (30.92)  (27.51)  (22.29)

 120.82  113.44  149.93 

19.	 Short - term borrowings

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Other Loans:
From banks - Secured ( see note below)# 1,447.17 1,084.32 -
Term Loan from bank ( see note below)## 1,231.69 356.43 314.07
From Directors

2,678.86 1,440.74 314.07

#Working Capital Security:

Company has sanction of 15 Cr from NKGSB Co opreative Bank Ltd as working capital limits

Primary :- First charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets of the company, present and future, including entire stocks (including 
goods in transit) and receivables

Collateral: Extension of first charge on entire immovable Property, plant & Equipments of the company and include the following:

The immovable fixed assets of the company include:

a) 	 Land & building situated at Plot No.22/2 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist Raigad.

b) 	 Land & building situated on Plot No. T-5/1 MIDC Ind. Area, Taloja, Taluka Panvel, Dist Raigad.

c) 	 Land & building situated at Plot No.K-7 Additional MIDC Mahad, Dist Raigad. 					  

Loans are guaranteed by the Managing Director and Wholetime Director					  

Rate of Interest: 9%					   

##Term Loan Borrowed against fixed deposits with NKGSB Co opreative Bank Ltd.	
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20.	 Trade Payables - Current

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises:
Creditors for Goods - - -
Creditors for Services - - -

- - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises:
Creditors for goods 1,097.92 812.35 1,144.35
Creditors for services 193.53 227.69 171.56

1,291.45 1,040.04 1,315.90
1,291.45 1,040.04 1,315.90

21.	 Other financial liabilities - Current

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Other payables:
Payable to suppliers of capital goods - - -
Total outstanding dues of other than Micro and Small 
enterprises

- - -

Unpaid Dividend 0.16 0.09 -
0.16 0.09 -

22.	 Other current liabilities

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Advance Received 10.78 10.16 5.00
Statutory liabilities 30.81 47.24 44.05
Other Laibilities 81.09 65.10 87.44

122.68 122.50 136.49

23.	 Provisions

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Income Tax 79.21 74.42 126.16
Employee Benefits - Gratuity 19.41 7.02 5.89

98.62 81.45 132.05
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24.	 Revenue From Operations

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Sale Of Goods 7,728.66 7,533.85 9,073.30
Sale Of Scrap 6.68 6.65 -

7,735.34 7,540.50 9,073.30

25.  Other Income

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Interest Income
On Fixed Deposits With Banks 210.90 188.98 33.37
Dividend Income 0.35 0.35 0.76
FEA gains (net) 7.05 10.27 -
Net Gain on Sale of Investments - 149.78 -
Profit On Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - - 2.15
Other Income 66.18 11.36 34.41
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Financial Investments 
(FVTPL)

63.92 37.85

348.40 398.59 70.69

26.	 Cost of materials Consumed

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Raw Materials Consumed
Opening stock 615.30 656.77 537.87
Add: Purchases 4,820.61 4,434.49 5,718.37

5,435.91 5,091.26 6,256.24
Less: Closing Stock 678.43 615.30 656.77

4,757.48 4,475.96 5,599.48
Packaging Materials Consumed
Opening stock 23.67 28.67 32.74
Add: Purchases 198.15 189.36 265.07

221.82 218.04 297.81
Less: Closing Stock 22.21 23.67 28.67

199.60 194.37 269.14
Total Cost of material Consumed 4,957.08 4,670.33 5,868.61
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27.	 Changes in Inventory of Finished goods, Work in Porgress & Stock-in-Trade

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

(Increase)/ Decrease in Stocks
Stock at the end of the Year:
Work-in-process 568.07 589.92 820.96
Finished Goods 660.85 750.37 584.24
TOTAL (A) 1,228.92 1,340.29 1,405.20
Less: Stock at the Beginning of the year
Work-in-process 589.92 820.96 926.05
Finished Goods 750.37 584.24 384.82
TOTAL (B) 1,340.29 1,405.20 1,310.87
TOTAL (B-A) 111.37 64.91 (94.33)

28.	 Employee Benefit expenses

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Salaries & Wages 739.40 717.31 654.72
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 32.86 32.15 29.17
Gratuity 16.38 13.98 16.18
Staff Welfare Expenses 24.63 30.33 25.68

813.27 793.77 725.74

29.	 Finance Costs

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Interest Expenses 170.04 161.70 143.26
Bill Discounting Charges 18.04 16.62 37.39
Interest amortisation on Lease 6.66 8.27

194.75 186.59 180.65

30.	 Other Expenses

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Factory Expenses 409.35 384.18 382.71
Carriage Outward 163.06 142.48 141.93
Professional Fees 133.53 126.26 125.33
Conveyance & Travelling 88.20 100.18 86.20
Commission 1.88 90.12 169.27
Office Expenses 27.21 61.34 45.65
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(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Donations 61.05 54.60 55.87
Capital Advances Written Off - 49.67 59.23
Rent 43.32 47.01 35.46
Security Charges 33.48 30.02 12.84
Provision For Doubtful Debts 25.02 24.99 13.54
Printing & Stationery 13.16 23.56 26.29
Business Promotion Expenses 19.60 19.77 32.98
Bank Charges 47.93 17.52 28.38
Insurance 15.60 16.08 14.80
Telephone Charges 13.02 12.80 13.27
Repairs & Maintenance 21.04 10.42 26.96
Computer Expenses 7.17 8.74 9.19
Courier Charges 4.24 7.61 10.83
Export Charges 6.94 5.32 6.92
Clearing & Forwarding Charges 1.23 4.19 9.56
Payment to Auditors (see note 31) 7.50 3.50 5.15
Electricity Office 3.33 3.41 2.09
Membership & Subscription 1.70 1.23 0.57
Advertisement 3.58 0.41 2.80
Discount Given 0.24 0.19 0.35
IPO Listing Charges - - 54.44

-28.18 -27.60
1.04 1.04

1,125.22 1,219.03 1,372.60

31.	 Payment to Auditors 

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Audit Fees 3.50 3.50 5.15
Reimbursement of expenses - - -
Other Services 4.00 - -

7.50 3.50 5.15
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32.	 Earning Per Share (EPS)

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2023

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
attributable to Equity Shareholders

462.44 480.46 611.20

Weighted Average number of equity shares used as 
denominator for calculating EPS

1,62,93,958 1,45,40,000 1,45,40,000

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (`) 2.84 3.30 4.20
Face Value per equity share (`) 10.00 10.00 10.00

33.	 Disclosures

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs 
and the related parties , either severally or jointly with any other person:

Nil Nil

34.	 Contingent Liability & Capital Commitments

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Contingent liability - Claims the company not acknowledged as debt.

Nil Nil
- 	 Indirect Tax matters
Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for.

35. Employee Benefits 

In compliance with AS 15 (Revised), Employee Benefits, Upto current year ended 31 March 2025 company has made provision 
for Gratuity at ` 122.86 including that of earlier years ` 109.32 (`  In Lacs).

36.	 Earnings and expenditure in foreign exchange

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Earning in Foreign Exchange 692.68 870.22
Expenditure in Foreign Currency
CIF Value of Import Purchase 197.18 234.70
Foreign Travelling Expenses 14.96 23.20
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37.	 Foreign Currency Exposure 

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Foreign Currency Receivable
`  Lakhs 100.52 290.73
US Dollars 1,17,100.00 3,83,803.15
Foreign Currency Payable
`  Lakhs 68.44 7.99
US Dollars 77,820.00 9,522.00

38.	 Segment Reporting 

The company has only one business segment viz. Manufacture of other chemical products, which is being considered as the 
primary segment.		

The information regarding the secondary segment, i.e. ‘geographical segments’ is given below:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Segment Revenue
Sales and Other Income from operations
- 	 India 7,042.66 7,031.03
- 	 Outside India 692.68 870.22

7,735.34 7,901.25
Carrying amount of assets by geographical location of assets
Segment Assets - Debtors
- 	 India 1,116.13 929.20
- 	 Outside India 100.52 290.73

1,216.66 1,219.93
Additions to fixed assets and intangible assets
Addition to fixed assets
- 	 India 908.17 865.57
- 	 Outside India - -

908.17 865.57

Notes

a.	 Secondary segments identified are as per the requirements of Accounting Standard AS-17 ‘Segment Reporting’ issued by 
The Institute of Chartered Accountancy of India, taking into account the organization structure as well as the differing risks 
and returns

b. 	 The segment revenue, results and total assets include the revenue and assets respectively, which are identifiable with each 
segment and amounts allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis
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39.	 Related party disclosures

Transactions with related parties / Key Management Personnel:

(` In Lakhs)

Name On account Year ended
31st March, 2025

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Hani Farid Director Remuneration 78.00 78.00
Mr. Aamer Farid Director Remuneration 84.00 84.00
Ms. Manisha Agarwal CFO - Remuneration# 1.78 4.63
Mr. Rehmat Shaikh CFO - Remuneration## 9.64 -
Ms. Sabina Qureshi Company Secretary 8.12 5.82
Enterprises on which key management personnel or their relatives has significant influence
M/s. M.A. Bagash Rent Paid 12.39 15.58
M/s. M.A. Bagash Purchases 0.46
Mr. Hani Farid Dividend Paid 14.01 21.01
Mr. Aamer Farid Dividend Paid 14.00 21.01
Mr. Ali Bagash Dividend Paid 13.71 20.56
Prime Foods & Confectionery LLP Loan Given ( excluding interest) 15.00 -
Prime Foods & Confectionery LLP Loan advanced Repayment 11.85 -
Prime Foods & Confectionery LLP Purchases (Expenses) 3.15
Mr. Hani Farid Loan Received - -
Mr. Hani Farid Loan Repaid - -
Mr. Aamer Farid Loan Received - -
Mr. Aamer Farid Loan Repaid - -

# Part of the year upto 31st July 2024

## Part of the year from 15th October 2024

Balances outstanding of related parties :

(` In Lakhs)

Name Remarks As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

M/s. M.A. Bagash  Rent Deposit Receivable  35.80  35.80 

40. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties 
(as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(` In Lakhs)

Name

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Amount of loan or advance in the 
nature of loan outstanding

% to the total Loans and Advances in 
the nature of loans

Promoters - -
Directors - -
Key managerial personnel - -
Related Parties - -
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

41. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

As per Section 135 of the companies act 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of 
its average net profit for the immediately preceeding three financial years on corporate social respnsibilty ( CSR) activities. The 
CSR comittee has been formed  by the company as per the act. The funds were allocated and utilised through the year on CSR 
activities specified  in schedule 7 of the companies act 2013.

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

a. 	 Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 9.33 7.67
b. 	 Amount of expendidture incurred 58.48 47.29
c. 	 Shortfall / (excess) at the end of the year (a-b) (49.15) (39.62)
d. 	 Total of previous years shortfall / (gain) (88.77) (39.62)
e. 	 Reasons for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
f. 	 details of releated party transactions Not applicable Not applicable
g. 	� Where a provision is made with respect to aliability incrred by entering into 

a contractual obligatin
Not applicable Not applicable

Nature of CSR activities: Education and healthcare

42. First time adoption of Ind AS:

As stated in note 2, these are the Company’s first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the 
year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company had prepared its Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with Companies 
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the then Act (‘previous 
GAAP’).

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March, 2015, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014 and 
the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2023 (the Company’s date of transition)

In preparing its opening Standalone Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2013 and in presenting the comparative information for 
the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in Standalone. Financial Statements 
prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its 
Standalone Financial Statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind 
AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows

43. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS						    

a. 	 The reconciliation of Other Equity reported in accordance with the previous GAAP to other equity as per Ind AS, as at 31st 
March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025 is as follows:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Other Equity under IGAAP 7187.15 4820.34
Ind AS adjustments:
Gain on fair valuation of investments 186.12 122.20
Loss on fair valuation of investments
Depreciation on Right to use asset on SLM 48.92 24.46
Interest Amortisation on lease 14.93 8.27
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(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Lease expense reversed as per GAAP (55.78) (27.60)
Interest on Secuirty deposit amortisation 2.09 1.04
Gratuity tranfer to OCI as per IND AS (Acturial) (14.95) (7.28)
Deferred Tax Expense 11.49 1.41
Initial Reversal of Deferred tax as per IGAAP (192.12) (192.12)
initial Recognition of deferred tax as per IND AS 149.93 149.93
Total Adjustments/Net Increase in Expenses (35.49) (41.89)
Other Equity as per Ind AS 7,408.76 4,984.43
Other Comprehensive Income (14.95) (7.28)
Total Comprehensive income as per Ind AS 7393.80 4977.15

b. 	 The reconciliation of Net Profits reported in accordance with the previous GAAP to other equity as per Ind AS, as at 31st 
March, 2024 and 31st March, 2025 is as follows:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Net Profits as per previous GAAP: 404.91 442.91
Ind AS adjustments: 63.92 37.85
Gain on fair valuation of investments 

Loss on fair valuation of investments  24.46  24.46 
Depreciation on Right to use asset on SLM  6.66  8.27 
Interest Amortisation on lease  (28.18)  (27.60)
Lease expense reversed as per GAAP  1.04  1.04 
Interest on Secuirty deposit amortisation  (7.67)  (7.28)
Gratuity tranfer to OCI as per IND AS (Acturial)  10.08  1.41 
Deferred Tax Expense
Initial Reversal of Deferred tax as per IGAAP
initial Recognition of deferred tax as per IND AS 6.40 0.30
Total Adjustments/Net Increase in Expenses
Net Profits as per Ind AS 462.43 480.46
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive income as per Ind AS

c. 	 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2025: There were no material 
differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP

44.	 Immovable Property Not Held In Company’s Name

	 The company does not hold any immovable property(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreement are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company and where 
such immovable property is jointly held with others.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

45. 	Details Of Benami Property

	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any Benami property

46. 	Registration Of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

47. 	Undisclosed Income

	 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

48. 	Details of Crypto / Virtual Currency

	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

49. 	Transactions with companies struck off

	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

50. 	�Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified as considered necessary to conform with current 
period presentation wherever applicable.

As per our report of even date attached
For Choudhary Choudhary & Co	 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Ducol Organics and Colours Limited
Firm Regn No. 002910C	

Alok Kumar Mishra	 Aamer Ahmed Farid	 Hani Ahmed Farid
Partner	 Managing Director	 Whole-time Director
M. No. 124184	 DIN : 00711705	 DIN : 00711968
UDIN No: 25124184BMIADZ2702
	 Rehmat Shaikh	 Sabina Qureshi
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
		  M. No. 65859	
Place: Mumbai	 Place: Mumbai
Dated: 21.05.2025	 Dated: 21.05.2025



92   |  DUCOL Organics & Colours Ltd.

Ratio Analysis
Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

1 Current Ratio (times)
2.01 1.43

(Current Assets / Current Liabilities)
2 Debt Equity Ratio (times)

0.30 0.32[(Non-current Borrowings + Current Borrowings) / (Equity (Share capital + Other 
Equity)]

3 Long Term debt to working capital (times)
0.01 0.51[(Non-current borrowings + current maturities of long term debt) / Net working 

capital]
4 Total debts to total assets

0.20 0.20
[(Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings)/Total assets]

5 Current Liability ratio
0.31 0.27

(Current Liabilities / Total Liabilities)
6 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times)

4.86 6.76(*Net income / **Debt obligations) [(*Net income is Profit after tax, before exceptional 
items + finance cost + depreciation and amortisation expense), (**Debt obligations is 
maturity of long-term debts and interest payment for the year)]

7 Interest service coverage ratio (times)
4.32 4.72[(Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation and exceptional itmes 

- interest income) / Finance cost]
8 Debtors Turnover ratio (times)

6.36 6.18
(Sale of goods and services / Average trade receivable)

9 Inventory Turnover ratio (times)
2.63 2.39

(Cost of good sold / Average inventory)
10 Trade Payables Turnover ratio (times)

3.92 4.55
(Cost of Goods & Services / Average Trade Payables)

11 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times)
2.86 4.62

(Turnover / Average Working Capital)
12 Operating Margin (%)

10.24% 9.72%[(Profit before tax and exceptional items + depreciationa and amortisation expenses 
+ finance cost (-) other income) / Revenue from operations]

13 Net Profit ratio (%)
13.92% 14.50%

(Net profit before exceptional items/ Revenue from operations)
14 Return on equity (%)

69.84% 75.22%
(Profit after tax before exceptional items / Average shareholders' equity)
Return on Capital Employed (%)

11.23% 14.57%(Earning before Interest, tax and exceptional items / Capital employed)
(Capital employed is tangible net worth + total debt + Net deferred tax liability)

15 Net worth (`  Lakhs)
9,023.21 6,431.15

(Equity + Other Equity)
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Registered Office: Office No 302,

Express Building, 14-E Road,
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cs@ducol.com
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Plant Locations
Unit 1

Plot No. 22/2, Taloja Industrial Area, MIDC Taloja,
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